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REPORT OF THE GOVERNING BODY 
 

Nature, Objectives and Strategies 
 
The Governors present their report and audited financial statements for the year ended 31 July 2020. 
 
Legal Status 
 
The College was incorporated as a sixth form college under The Further and Higher Education Act 1992.  
The College is an exempt charity for the purposes of part 3 of the Charities Act 2011. 

Mission 
 
To achieve academic excellence in a supportive and inspiring learning community.   
 
The governors and staff review the mission and strategic objectives periodically.  There have been no 

changes made in the year. 

 

Public Benefit 

Winstanley College is an exempt charity under the Part 3 of the Charities Act 2011 and is regulated by the 
Secretary of State for Education.  The members of the Governing Body, who are who are trustees of the 
charity, are disclosed on pages 17-18.   

In setting and reviewing the College’s strategic objectives, the Governing Body has had due regard for the 
Charity Commission’s guidance on public benefit and particularly upon its supplementary guidance on the 
advancement of education.  

In delivering its mission, the College provides the following identifiable public benefits through the 
advancement of education: 

• High-quality teaching for approximately 1900 students including those with high needs 

• Excellent results and value added for all students irrespective of their background  

• Excellent track record of student progression to Higher Education, Employment and 

apprenticeships 

• Strong guidance and welfare support for students 

• Appropriate links with universities, employers, industry and commerce. 

 

The delivery of public benefit is covered throughout the Members Report. 
 

Implementation of the Strategic Plan 

The College prepares an Improvement Plan annually on a calendar year basis to record actions taken 
toward its strategic objectives.  This Improvement Plan includes actions from property and financial plans 
alongside education improvements.  The Governors monitor the performance of the College against the 
development plan by formal review of the Improvement Plan at three points each year. 

The College’s strategic objectives for 2019-20 are included in the Cross College Improvement Plan for the 
year.  Key College objectives for 2019-20 were:- 

• To ensure our students achieve the best outcomes possible in order to improve their life chances  

• To close any achievement gaps 

• To ensure we recruit to target 

• To ensure we remain a sustainable going concern with Financial Health Good 

• To provide the best possible facilities for our students 

• To provide high quality careers and IAG services to our students 

• To support staff wellbeing, welfare and professional development so our staff are the best they can 
be 
 

The College considers that at 31 July 2020 and up to the point of adoption of these accounts, good 
progress was being made on the 2019-20 strategic objectives.  There was some disruption to normal 

4

DocuSign Envelope ID: C3435BE3-DA76-4CAC-930A-F4FF9760DA34



 

WINSTANLEYCOLLEGE 
 

activity as a result of the covid 19 virus. The Covid19 pandemic has made it hard to assess performance 
at A level in a comparable way to prior years, as there were no external summer exams.   

 
Key Performance Indicators 

The College is judged by the Department for Education against measures displayed on .Gov website at 
compare-school-performance.service.gov.uk.  This includes measures for Progress, Attainment and in 
future may also include Retention Destinations and progress in Maths and English for those without 
GCSE grade C or above.  The cancellation of exams in summer 2020 means that performance tables 
will be suspended for the year. 
 
Performance against KPIs is as follows:- 
 

KPI Outcome Assessment 

Student numbers  
 
Target 1908 

 
 
1831 

The 16-18 population across the North West of 
England continued to contract by 1% leading to 
intense competition between schools, colleges 
and apprenticeship providers.   Enrolment in 
September 2020 indicates that the college has 
bounced back from the demographic dip. 

Destinations 
Higher Education 
Employment 
Apprenticeship 
Further Education 
Other & Gap year 
 
Target  HE 82%  
Employment 9% 

 
83% 
2% 
6% 
1% 
9% 

 
Cancellation of summer A level exams in 2020 
meant that students progressed to university on 
the strength of centre assessed grades.  The 
covid19 pandemic has affected opportunities for 
jobs and apprenticeships. 

Operating deficit 
 
Target £265k deficit before 
FRS 102 pension costs 
 
 
 
EBITDA Education specific 
Target 3.9% 

£473k 
 
£24k 
deficit 
before 
FRS102 
 
 
7.4 % 
 

The college restructured its staff cost in 2019 in 
light of continued austerity funding.    
 
With the college site closing to staff and students 
in March 2020 for lockdown, there were running 
cost savings into the summer.   
 
Operating deficit and EBITDA ratio therefore 
improved. 
 

Ofsted Rating Good In October 2018 Ofsted chief inspector Amanda 
Spielman expressed the view that “real terms 
cuts to FE funding are affecting the sustainability 
and quality of FE provision”. 
 
Winstanley college was last judged Ofsted 
Outstanding in 2007 when funding per student 
was £4500.  By 2019-20 funding per student has 
been reduced to £4012 – a 42% funding 
reduction in real terms.  The college was re-
inspected in February 2020. 

 
Student achievements 

Students continue to prosper and achieve at the college.  Achievement rates remained high in 2019-20. 
Many students went on to study at Higher Education and the college had excellent progression rates to top 
universities in the Russell group and Oxbridge, and on highly competitive courses such as Medicine, 
Dentistry and Veterinary Science. 
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Financial Objectives 

The College’s financial objectives are: 

▪ to achieve an EBITDA (Earnings before interest tax depreciation and amortisation) >1% and so 
Financial Health Good.  The college set a budget in 2019-20 which would see EBITDA of 3.9% 

▪ to maintain a current ratio of >1.5 and minimal borrowing 

▪ to generate sufficient levels of income or control costs so as to maintain staff costs at below 85% 

▪ to use strong cash reserves to weather the funding and demographic down turn returning to cash-
flow positive when funding is increased. 

▪ To use the college’s accumulated surplus and strong cash reserves to support cross authority 
boundary transport costs subject to an annual review.  The college is situated 1 mile from the 
boundaries with West Lancashire and St Helens 

A series of key performance indicators have been agreed to monitor the successful implementation of the 
objectives and these are reported upon in Monthly Management Accounts. 

Financial Health and cash flow is monitored by the Education & Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) at various 
points each year from the financial forecast and the financial statements (finance record). 

College financial statements have shown the college as Outstanding Financial Health in all years since 
1996-7 up until 2019.  Continued austerity funding in 2019-20 with real wage increases mean we expect to 
remain Good Financial Health until there is improved funding for 16-18 Education and Teachers pay and 
pension costs as part of the government spending review. 
 
Full summarised financial statistics since incorporation are shown at the end of the Financial Statements 
after the Regularity Opinion for information. 
 
 

FINANCIAL POSITION 

Financial Results  

The College posted an operating deficit £473,000 (2019 deficit £747,000) after FRS102. 

On a historic basis excluding FRS102 adjustments = £24,000 deficit (£343,000 deficit 2019)     

The College continues to adapt to historic low levels of funding in real terms. 

Income has fallen in line with the dip in student numbers on a lagged basis. 

A staff restructuring programme took place in summer 2019.  In 2020 wage rises were kept to below 2% 
as there was no increase to the national funding rate per student.     

Other operating expenses were kept in check owing to the national lockdown. 

Bank of England interest rates fell to extremely low levels during the Covid19 pandemic. The yield on 
government bonds is a major factor in the FRS102 valuation of pension liabilities.  This has led to a higher 
notional charge for pensions and increased actuarial loss and reported pension deficit of £4.0m.  The 
McCloud case outcome has added to this deficit position. 

Taking all of the above into account the college has managed to keep a steady deficit by restructuring 
staffing and cutting other operating expenses against a backdrop of continued real terms cuts to its core 
funding.  Therefore in continued difficult economic circumstances and with the national covid19 pandemic 
unfolding, we consider that we have had a satisfactory year. 

The College has accumulated income and expenditure reserves of £13.3m (2019 £14.9m) and cash 
balances of £5.0m at the year-end (2019 £4.9m).   Reserves have been reduced by the pension deficit 
increase and real terms fall in funding per student. 

The college continues to reinvest cash into equipment and resources for our students and capital spend 
reached £396k (£1,340k in 2018-19).  

The college successfully bid for Condition Improvement Funding (CIF) to replace the sport hall heating 
systems and received £105k capital grant in the year with a further £26k due after the final grant claim has 
been submitted.  The college has bid to the CIF fund for additional safeguarding and security measures 
and, after a delay, this bid was approved during summer 2020 so work is being planned for 2020-21 
completion.  A CIF bid to upgrade electrical distribution boards was unsuccessful.   
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The college has successfully applied for a capital grant for £53,500 from the Wolfson Foundation to update 
the Design Technology Workshop in Art and work has progressed well in the summer of 2020.  

The College continues to invest in ILT with computer equipment replaced over a five-year cycle.  New 
investment was made in a new MIS/ Student record system which went live in September 2019 on the Unit 
E platform from Capita.  A Cedar Front end platform has been added to the system from August 2020. 

During lockdown for covid19 the college continued to respond to requests from students for support with 
online connectivity by providing loaned computer equipment or dongles.  In summer 2020 Laptops are 
being purchased for teachers so that they can continue to deliver education from home in the event of a 
further lockdown period or site closure for Covid19. 

Like many sixth form colleges, Winstanley College is significantly reliant on the ESFA for its principal source 
of funding, almost exclusively from recurrent grants.  In 2020 ESFA income again underpinned 98% of 
College total income (2019 97%).  ESFA recurrent funding has been reduced by £1.1m per year since 
2010.  In addition, other income sources such as bank interest has fallen after Brexit and Covid 19. 

Sixth forms which have converted to Academy status are able to recover input VAT, business rates, and 
receive additional funding for the Teacher Pay Review Body recommendations. 

It was pleasing therefore on 1 September 2020 when Chancellor Sajid Javid finally announced that the 
national rate of funding per student is set to increase to £4,188 in 2020-21.  This will be the first increase in 
funding for 10 years.  Additional funding has since been pledged for higher cost and high value subjects.  
As yet funding for the 7.1% increase in teaching pension costs has not been guaranteed after April 2021. 

The college hopes that as part of the 2020-1 spending review, the UK government and DFE will note that 
the contribution that sixth form colleges have made to austerity has been significant.   

 

Treasury Policies and Objectives  

Treasury management is the management of the College’s cash flows, its banking, money market and 
capital market transactions: the effective control of the risks associated with those activities and the pursuit 
of optimum performance consistent with those risks. 

The College’s treasury management policy is contained within the financial regulations.  Surplus funds are 
held in deposits with Lloyds and Nationwide.  Since the Covid-19 lockdown hit the UK in March 2020 Bank 
of England base rates have collapsed to just above zero and so bank interest on deposits is also at a record 
low of c0.3-0.4%.  Governors have requested a review of the college investment strategy in line with Charity 
Commission investment rules. 

As part of the Condition Improvement Fund the college has taken a £31,000 loan to cover the input VAT 
cost of the Sport hall heating system.  This is spread over 10 years at a low rate of interest. 

The college also has Salix energy efficiency loans which are interest free and paid for out of savings in 
energy costs as well as helping to reduce our carbon emissions.  A new loan has been taken out for the 
sport hall heating system. 

 

Cash Flows 

At £295k (£521k 2019), the College considers itself to have fair cash flows from operating activities 
proportionate to its size as an institution. 

 

Liquidity 

The College has re-invested £396k in capital expenditure in the year and so cash balances have remained 
at £5.0m.  The college invests surplus funds in one year deposits or 95 day notice accounts and would 
suffer a loss of interest if it had to call funds back at short notice.  At the year end the current account 
balance stood at £1.386m with Santander.  Deposits were £3.644m with Lloyds and Nationwide.   
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Reserves Policy 

The college recognises that reserves are important for financial stability.  The college has historically 
enjoyed strong reserves but cuts to the rate of funding per student mean that it may be necessary to live 
off reserves until funding per student increases with inflation, once austerity and Brexit are over, and the 
UK government is able to properly value state sector funded sixth form education.    

The college needs to keep some reserves aside to cover its pension deficit, to provide for unforeseen risks 
and emergency expenditure and to support the colleges long term property strategy. 

 

CURRENT AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENT AND PERFORMANCE 

College Context 

The College’s core business is meeting the educational needs of 16-19 students in Wigan and surrounding 
areas.  The college has a culture of high aspiration and expectation and seeks to reach the highest 
standards of student achievement.  The college is committed to a culture of continuous improvement and 
seeks to support and inspire our learners.  Critical self-assessment continues to play a major part in 
identification of strengths and areas for development.  

Overall student numbers and funding at 1 November are:- 

Year Number of students ESFA Funding for the year excluding financial support for students 

2019 1908 £7.852m 

2020 1831 £7.654m 

2021 c1940  £8.373m including high value course premium.  Funding for Teachers 
pensions costs of £183k is only guaranteed up to 31 March 2021 

 

The majority of students follow Level 3 A level programmes, some students follow a mixed programme of 
A levels and vocational modules and the college also has a successful Art Foundation Diploma course. 

Curriculum Developments 

The college is able to support one of the broadest selections of A level subject choice in the North West.  
We also continue to expand our offer of vocational modular qualifications. 

Extra-Curricular activities 

The college provides an extensive range of cross college and curricular based enrichment.  This includes 
team sports and wider student fitness activities, Duke of Edinburgh, Creative and performing Arts events 
and shows, debates and Young Enterprise, Winstanley TV, Student Union clubs and societies, world 
challenge and curricular and cross curricular trips and visits.  The college values learning outside the 
classroom and the skills students can develop from taking part in extra-curricular activities.   

The Covid19 pandemic curtailed many trips from March 2020 onwards and in 2020-21 further restrictions 
over travel remain in place.  Rules over contact sport have also been tightened up to create social distance 
and avoid transmission of the virus. Thus many enrichment opportunities are currently restricted. 

Student Achievement, Retention & Progression 

The college has continued to maintain a very strong track record of students progressing to Higher 
Education with many students progressing to Russell Group Universities including Oxford and Cambridge. 
This is in spite of the re-introduction of linear exams.  Progression to HE remains around 86%  

Retention at the college is ahead of national benchmarks and therefore more students from Winstanley will 
progress to University than would be the case at other colleges. 

All students have a personal tutor who monitors their progress throughout their time at college, and as part 
of the tutorial programme students learn about personal safety and British values including political 
extremism and radicalisation.  The college has a lively political and debating society where students can 
practice democracy and respect for the rule of law in a safe environment. 

The 2020 exam series were cancelled due to the Covid19 virus and teachers assessed grades or CAGs 
were used to set results.  2020 achievement data is therefore not comparable to 2019.   
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Future Prospects 

The funding and competitive demographic for sixth form colleges continues to be extremely challenging.  
In spite of this Winstanley College continues to deliver high quality education and excellent outcomes for 
learners.  Recruitment for 2020-21 has rebounded from the demographic dip and will provide confidence 
and funding benefits into 2021-22. 

The college has maintained financial stability and considers that it is appropriate to use the going concern 
assumption in its financial statements. 

 

RESOURCES 

The College has various resources that it can deploy in pursuit of its strategic objectives. 

People 

The College employed on average 171 staff (141fte) of whom 78 are Teachers (70fte) and 93 are Non-
Teaching staff (71 fte).   

The College recognises that its staff make a major contribution to its excellent results and good educational 
provision and retains a commitment to be a true learning organisation in its strategic objectives.  The 
College continues to invest in staff training and development. 

Financial 

The College has strong reserves including £5.0m cash and no material long term debt.   Provision has been 
made for a support staff pension deficit under FRS102 of £4.0m but I&E reserves remain strong relative to 
the sector.   

Tangible resources include the main College site, which comprises a variety of buildings dating from 1954 
to 2020.  The estate remains very attractive, clean and tidy, and sustainability is being improved. 

Reputation 

The College has an excellent reputation in the local and regional area.  The college was recognised as the 
TES Sixth Form College of the Year, The Educate North Awards Outright Winner and most inspirational 
16-18 provider during 2016-17. 

 

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES 

The college has well developed strategies for managing risk and strives to embed risk management in all 
that it does.  Risk management processes are designed to protect its assets, reputation and financial 
stability.  The governing body has overall responsibility for risk management and its approach to managing 
risks and internal controls is explained in the statement on corporate governance.  

A risk register is maintained at the college level which is reviewed at least annually by the Audit committee 
and more frequently where necessary by the Finance & Resources committee. The risk register identifies 
the key risks, the likelihood of those risks occurring, their potential impact on the college and the actions 
being taken to mitigate and reduce those risks.  Risks are prioritised using a consistent scoring system. 

The main risks affecting the college are outlined below with the action being taken to minimise them.  Not 
all factors are within the college’s control.  Other factors besides those listed may affect the college. 

1 Economic impact of Covid 19 followed by a No deal Brexit 

The UK economy may continue to shrink by 2-3% relative to the rest of the world and therefore the 
government will have less revenue to fund education while it tries to reduce record high public borrowing 
from the pandemic. 

The college continues to lobby government via the SFCA and local MPs so that further cuts to education 
are made fairly. 

2 Recruitment impact of Covid19 

The continued restrictions of lockdown and being in a very high risk area for covid19 mean that it is difficult 
to attend schools or hold on site events such as open evenings. 

The college has stepped up its online recruitment activities to compensate. 
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STAKEHOLDER RELATIONSHIPS 

In line with other colleges and with universities, Winstanley College has many stakeholders.  These 
include:- 

Students 
Staff 
Parents 
The local community 
Local Schools & Academies 
Other Colleges and Universities 
Trades Unions 
Professional Bodies 
The Education & Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) 
The Regional Schools Commissioner 
Local Authorities  
Other Government Agencies 
The College recognises the importance of these relationships and engages in regular dialogue with them. 
Student satisfaction as surveyed in year indicates that the students have a highly positive opinion of the 
college. 

Trade Union Facility Time 

The college has three recognised unions and staff who give their time to undertake official union duties are 
allowed time back to facilitate their duties in a way that represents value for money.  We are very grateful 
for the time and input that these staff give to the life of the college.   Under the Trade Union (Facility Time 
Publication Requirements) Regulations 2017 the college is required to publish additional information.  There 
were 2 FTE employees who were paid for <5% of their working time when they had union duties to attend 
to.  This had a total cost in the year of £5,800 this represented 0.09% of the total £6.366m pay cost in year 
such that the cost of such time is considered to be immaterial to these financial statements.  

Payment Performance 

The late payment performance 1998 regulations require colleges to make payment to suppliers within 30 
days of the date of supply of goods or the date of invoice.  The college has made its best efforts to pay all 
invoices within 30 days and has taken positive steps to support small and local suppliers .  Actual 
performance cannot be extracted from the college finance software. The college incurred no penalty 
charges for late payment in the period.   

Planned Maintenance Programme 

The college had a planned maintenance programme estimated to cost £3.2m over 10 years in 2010, 
resulting in an annual average budget of £320,000.   

Since that time Austerity funding cuts have made the budget more difficult to balance and the budget for 
planned maintenance was reduced to £86,000 in order to prioritise spending on other areas of college 
during 2019-20.   The college continues to bid to ESFA for condition improvement CIF funding to support 
priority maintenance projects. 

Staff and Student Involvement 

The college considers good communication with its staff to be very important.  The college encourages 
staff, student and parent involvement through membership of formal committees and focus groups.  The 
college undertakes frequent surveys to gauge student and staff opinion.   

Taxation 

The college’s activities do not fall to be charged to corporation tax. However other taxes are levied in an 
unfair way across the education sector, and this continues to favour free schools, UTCs and Academies 
and give them a distorted advantage, over sixth form colleges.  This includes treatment of VAT and business 
rates recovery, where FE sector colleges are penalised, reducing the resource available to deliver front line 
education to 16-18 students. 

The college therefore continues to support campaigns to level the VAT disadvantage inflicted upon the 
Sixth Form and FE sectors. 
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Equality and Diversity 
 
Equal Opportunities, Employment of Disabled Persons and Disability Statement 
Winstanley College is committed to ensuring equality of opportunity for all who learn and work here. We 
respect and value positively differences in race, gender, sexual orientation, religion, ability, class and age. 
We strive vigorously to remove conditions which place people at a disadvantage and we will actively combat 
bigotry or harassment.  
 
The college has an Equality & Diversity Policy (2020) underpinned by an annual self-assessment report 
(SAR) covering areas such as 

Equality & Diversity  
Race Equality  
Disability Equality  
Gender Equality  
Bullying & Harassment 
 

The policy and SAR have been updated to take account of The Equality Act 2010.   

The College considers all applications from disabled persons, bearing in mind the aptitudes of the 
individuals concerned. Where an existing employee becomes disabled, every effort is made to ensure that 
employment with the College continues. The College's policy is to provide training, career development and 
opportunities for promotion, which are, as far as possible, identical to those for other employees. An 
equalities review takes place at the end of every year and statistics concerning applications for employment 
are monitored by managers and governors. 

The College provides access to a counselling service to assist the mental health wellbeing of students. 
The College has also implemented an updated Equality & Diversity training programme which all staff 
have attended. Refresher training and training for new starters is carried out on an ongoing basis. 
 

There is a pro-active staff-student E&D group which contributes to the rich and colourful tapestry of 
enrichment events during the college year.  A College BAME society has been started with students in 
response to the Black Lives Matter campaign.   
 

Disability Statement 
 
The College seeks to achieve the objectives set down in The Equality Act 2010, and the Disability 
Discrimination Act 1995 as amended by the Special Education Needs and Disability Act 2001 and 2005. 
The college has achieved and maintained the Positive about Disabled Quality mark and is considered two 
ticks positive. 
 
a) As part of its accommodation strategy the College updated its access audit. Experts in this field 

conducted a full access audit during 2008, and the results are published on the college website to 
inform potential students, employees and the general public who may wish to access facilities at the 
college.  Completion of the science and Library has greatly improved access for wheelchair users in 
part of the site.  Landscaping around Maths in 2016 has made pedestrian routes to Art and Psychology 
much easier to navigate.  In summer 2018 the college created a new hygiene suite in response to a 
student’s specific needs.   

 
b) The College employs a Progression and Welfare Officer and Study Support Manager, who provide 

information, advice and arrange support where necessary for students with disabilities.  Where these 
needs cost more than £6,000 per year further support may be agreed with the relevant Local Authority. 

 
c) Where required specialist equipment, such as braille printers, can be made available for use by 

students and a range of assistive technology is available from the study support unit in the Library. 
 
d) The admissions policy for all students is described in the College prospectus. Appeals against a 

decision not to offer a place are dealt with by the appeals panel who have the authority to adjust entry 
criteria in the case of students with long-term conditions or disabilities. 

 
e) The College has made a significant investment in the development of specialist tutors to support 

students with learning difficulties and/or disabilities. There are a number of study support assistants 
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who can provide a variety of support for learning. There is a continuing programme of staff 
development to ensure the provision of a high level of appropriate support for students who have 
learning difficulties and/or disabilities. 

 
f) Achievements and destinations are analysed by gender, ethnicity, disability, disadvantage and 

learning need and are recorded and monitored by the Equality and Diversity group each year. 
 
g) The college can provide students with access to three confidential counsellors if needed, triaged by 

the personal tutors.  Counselling and welfare services are described in the College Student Guide, 
which is issued to students together with the Complaints and Disciplinary Procedure leaflets at 
induction. 
 

h) The college works hard to ensure that students with mental health problems are also well catered for 
and employs a nurture room supervisor to provide additional assistance to students who need this 
support. 

 

Sustainability 
 

The college buildings dating from the 1954 to the present day were not always designed with modern 
standards of sustainability at heart.  
 
The college continues to recycle plastics, cardboard, paper and toner cartridges.  General waste is sorted 
offsite to recover items that can be diverted from landfill.   Life expired IT and teaching equipment is 
distributed to students for home use or to charities.  The college student union remains pro-active on 
environmental issues and supports issues such as energy conservation and recycling.  Many students 
travel to college by public transport.  A baseline survey of travel patterns was undertaken in 2007-8 and a 
follow up survey was undertaken in 2017-18.  The college continues to offer a cycle purchase scheme to 
staff and provides an extensive bus network where local authority provision is not available.  From 
September 2020 the Greater Manchester Mayor has provided “Our Pass” which gives free bus travel for 
16-18 year olds on a two year trial.   It is hoped that this will encourage a shift away from cars to more 
sustainable travel. 
 
The college complied with the Display Energy Certificate regulations during 2008-9 for the first time. Since 
that time the college has invested in voltage optimisation (2011) which has reduced electricity consumption 
by >10%, Biomass boilers replaced oil fired heating in 2012.  New roofs in 2013 had double the insulation 
required by the then current building regulations and a solar array generates onsite renewable electricity 
from the roof of B corridor. In 2015-16 we installed further LED lighting into Psychology and Guidance 
rooms with support from a Salix grant of £18,000.  We continue to remind staff to turn off lights, projectors 
and air conditioning and use software to power down PCs each evening.  The improvements have lifted 
the DEC score back into B category. 
 
The recent lockdown period caused by the covid pandemic saw the college site shut down for parts of 
March, April and May.  This has led to Electricity consumption falling to levels last recorded in 1999.  In  
2020-21 we are having to run ventilation systems and keep windows open to help disperse the virus.  We 
expect this will lead to higher heating and running costs so we expect winter 2020-21 to be a worse year 
for energy conservation. 
 
Carbon Reduction 
 
In 2008 the UK government set a target to reduce carbon emissions by 80% by 2050 from a 1990 baseline.  
The college does not have data for 1990 as at that time it was part of Wigan LA. Our earliest consistent 
data goes back to 2002-3. In 2019 we moved to 100% renewable electricity from April 2019.  In terms of 
carbon footprint overall we have reduced from 856 tonnes to 156 tonnes a reduction of 82%.  Thereby 
reaching our 2008 target 30 years early!   
 
We can now focus on the tougher challenge of zero carbon by 2038 which has been set by the Mayor of 
Manchester.  To do this we will have to find a new source of heating for the college which is more 
sustainable than natural gas.  We will also have to work toward reducing our footprint from travel, 
commuting and supplies to college by 2038 which will require commitment from government toward 
sustainable rail and road transport and joint action by staff, students and the college supply chain. 
 
 

12

DocuSign Envelope ID: C3435BE3-DA76-4CAC-930A-F4FF9760DA34



 

WINSTANLEYCOLLEGE 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
‘* source carbon-calculator.org.uk  simple carbon calculator 2017 data (and datasets for 2014-16) 

http://www.carbon-calculator.org.uk 
 
Disclosure of Information to Auditors 
 
The governors who held office at the date of approval of this report confirm that, so far as they are each 
aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the College’s auditors are unaware; and each member 
has taken all the steps that he or she ought to have taken to be aware of any relevant audit information and 
to establish that the College’s auditors are aware of that information.  
 
Approved by order of the Board of Governors 
and signed on its behalf by 
 
 
 
 
 
James Pearson 
Chair 
14 December 2020 

Carbon 
“footprint” from 

energy use 

 

Year to 31 July 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2003 
 

Electricity Kkwh 
Green Electricity 

Solar Kkwh 
 

CO2 tonnes 

684 
657 

27 
 

0 

579 
236 
29 

 
203 

845 
 

36 
 

297 

798 
 

21 
 

281* 

759 
 

23 
 

313* 

858 
 
 
 

447 

Gas Kkwh 

Tonnes C02 

846 

156 

927 

171 

1027 

189 

859 

158* 

1016 

187* 

819 

151 

Oil Kkwh - - - - - 842 

258 

Biomass Kkwh 252 286 263 169 133 - 

Total      Kkwh 

CO2 

1782 

156 

2057 

374 

2171 

486 

1847 

439* 

1931 

500* 

2519 

856 

Reduction in 
Energy from 2003 

29% 18% 14% 27% 23% n/a 

Student numbers 
1 Nov 

1831 1908 1947 2020 2060 1634 

Tonnes CO2 per 
student 

0.09 0.20 0.25 0.22 0.24 0.52 

Overall % 
reduction in CO2 
since 2003 

82% 56% 43% 49% 

 

42% 0% 

13

DocuSign Envelope ID: C3435BE3-DA76-4CAC-930A-F4FF9760DA34



 

WINSTANLEYCOLLEGE 

STATEMENT OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL 

 

The following statement is provided to enable readers of the annual report and accounts of the 
College to obtain a better understanding of its governance and legal structure.  This statement covers 
the period from 1st August 2019 to 31st July 2020 and up to the date of approval of the annual report 
and financial statements on 14 December 2020. 
 

The College endeavors to conduct its business: 

 

I. in accordance with the seven principles identified by the Committee on Standards in 
Public Life  (selflessness, integrity, objectivity, accountability, openness, honesty and 
leadership); 
 

II. whilst not formally adopted, The Corporation gives due regard to the UK Corporate Governance 
Code (“the Code”) insofar as it is applicable to the further education sector. 

 
The College is committed to exhibiting best practice in all aspects of corporate governance. 
 
We have reported on our Corporate Governance arrangements by drawing upon best practice 

available, including those aspects of the UK Corporate Governance Code we consider to be relevant to 

the further education sector and best practice. 

 

In the opinion of the governors, the College complies with all the provisions of the Code in so far as they 
apply to the Further Education Sector, and it has complied throughout the year ended 31 July 2020.  The 
governing body recognises that as a body entrusted with both public and private funds it has a particular 
duty to observe the highest standards of corporate governance at all times.   

 

The College is an exempt charity within the meaning of Part 3 of the Charities Act 2011. The Governors, 
who are also the Trustees for the purposes of the Charities Act 2011, confirm that they have had due 
regard for the Charity Commission’s guidance on public benefit and that the required statements appear 
elsewhere in these financial statements. 
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The Board of Governors  
 
The members who served on the Board of Governors during the year and up to the date of signature of this 
report were as listed in the table below.  
 

Member 
Date of 

Appointed 
Term of 
Office 

Date of 
Resignation  

Status of 
Appointment 

Committees 
Served** 

Attendance*  

Nadia Anim-
Somuah 

30 Nov 19 
18 
months 

 Student F&R 100% 

Manoj 
Agarwal 

26-Mar-18 
18 
months 

31 July 2020 Parent Audit 100% 

Elizabeth 
Collins 

26-Mar-18 4 years  External F & R 100% 

Lucinda Duffy 30 Nov 19 
18 
months 

 Parent Audit 100% 

Yasmin Duffy 21-Jan-19 
18 
Months 

30 June 
2020 

Student C&QC 75% 

Mark 
Hanrahan 

01-Aug-19 
3rd – 4 
years 

 External 

Chair Search, 
F&R to Oct 
2020 then 
Audit, 
Remuneration 

80% 

Dean Hilton 01-Sep-19 4 years  Staff 
F&R from Oct 
2020 

80% 

Grace Holland 16-Feb-18 
18 
Months 

30 June 
2020 

Student C&QC 33.33% 

Tracey 
Howson  

12-Dec-16 
2nd - 4 
years 

17 Dec 2019 

 
External  Chair C&QC 100% 

Stefan 
Issacson 

16 Dec 19 4 years  Staff C&QC 100% 

Antony 
Kearns 

05-Jan-19 
2nd - 4 
years 

 External 
Chair F&R, 
Search, 
Remuneration 

100% 

Debbie Liptrot 01-Sep-15 4 years 
31 August 
2019 

Staff C&QC 60% 

Margaret 
McKenzie 

05-Jan-19 
2nd - 4 
years 

 External CQC 100% 
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Alison Mullan 26-Mar-18 4 years  External 

Chair C&QC, 
Search, 
Remuneration 
(Chair from Oct 
2020) 

100% 

Nayyar Naqvi 05-Jan-19 
2nd - 4 
years 

 External C&QC 100% 

Michael Oates 03-May-20 
2nd - 4 
years 

 External 

Audit (Chair 
Audit from Oct 
2020), Search 
& 
Remuneration 

100% 

James 
Pearson 

03-Feb-19 
3rd - 4 
years 

 
External 
Chair 

Chair, C&QC, 
Search, Chair 
(to Oct 19 of) 
Remuneration  

100% 

Jessica 
Richmond 

30 Mar 20 4 years  External Audit 50% 

Kevan Ryan 05-Jan-19 
2nd - 4 
years 

 External Audit 100% 

Andrew 
Thomas 

29-Jan-18 4 years 9 Sept 2019 Staff F&R 60% 

Louise Tipping 21-Oct-13 Ex-officio  Principal 
C&QC, F&R, 
Search 

100% 

Student 
Governor 

14-Dec-20    F&R  

 
There is currently a vacancy for 1 student governor and 1 governor. 
 

Rachael Weir was appointed as independent Clerk to the Corporation from 9 October 2017. 
 

A student governor will be appointed from Year 12 during the autumn term.  There has been a vacancy 
since May 2019. 
 
*This figure is based on attendance at 5 Board meetings. 
 
**C&QC = Curriculum and Quality Committee, F&R = Finance & Resources Committee 

 
The Board of Governors 
 
The composition of the Board of Governors is set out above. 
 
It is the Board’s responsibility to bring independent judgement to bear on issues of strategy, performance, 
resources and standards of conduct. 
 
The Board is provided with regular and timely information on the overall financial performance of the 
College, together with other information such as performance against funding targets, proposed capital 
expenditure, quality matters and personnel related matters such as health and safety and environmental 
issues.  The Board was scheduled to meet five times in 2019-20. 
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The Board conducts its business through a number of committees. Each committee has terms of reference, 
which have been approved by the Board. These committees are Audit, Curriculum & Quality, Finance and 
Resources, Remuneration and Search.  Full minutes of all meetings, except those deemed to be 
confidential by the Board, are available from the Clerk to the Governors and from the college website 
winstanley.ac.uk. 
 
The Clerk to the Governors maintains a register of financial and personal interests of the Governors.  The 
register is available for inspection at the College, Winstanley Road, Billinge, Wigan WN5 7XF. 
 
All Governors are able to take independent professional advice in furtherance of their duties at the College’s 
expense and have access to the Clerk to the Governors, who is responsible to the Board for ensuring that 
all applicable procedures and regulations are complied with. The appointment, evaluation and removal of 
the Clerk are matters for the Board of Governors as a whole. 
 
Formal agendas, papers and reports are supplied to Governors in a timely manner, prior to Board meetings. 
Briefings are also provided on an ad-hoc basis. 
 
The Board has a strong and independent non-executive element and no individual or group dominates its 
decision making process. The Board considers that each of its non-executive members is independent of 
management and free from any business or other relationship which could materially interfere with the 
exercise of their independent judgement. 
 
There is a clear division of responsibility in that the roles of the Chair of Governors and the Principal are 
separate. 
 
Covid 19   
 
Since March 2020 all Governance business has been conducted using video conferencing.  No meeting 
delays or cancellations have occurred.  Any governor apologies for absence and quoracy of meetings 
remained unchanged during the period 
 
Appointments to the Board of Governors 
 
Any new appointments or re-appointments to the Board of Governors are a matter for the consideration of 
the Board as a whole. The Board has a Search Committee which is responsible for succession planning, 
the selection and nomination of any new member for the Board’s consideration.  The Board is responsible 
for ensuring that appropriate training is provided as required. 
 
Members of the Board of Governors are appointed for a term of office not exceeding 4 years.  Members 
may then stand for re-election for a second or subsequent term of office. 
 
Performance of the Board of Governors 
 
The attendance of governors is shown in the table above. Each year the governing body contributes to the 
overall self-assessment process of the college and sets targets for the board to address for the following 
year.  The self-assessment process concludes with a validation panel in November of each year and the 
grade for leadership and management includes consideration of governor performance.  Targets are then 
included in the Cross College Improvement Plan for the following year. 
 
Remuneration Committee 
 
Throughout the year ending 31 July 2020, the College’s Remuneration Committee comprised those 
members listed above.  The Committee’s responsibilities are to make recommendations to the Board on 
the remuneration and benefits of the Principal and other senior post-holders. 
 
Details of remuneration for the year ended 31 July 2020 are set out in notes 7-8 to the financial statements. 
 
Audit Committee 
 
The Audit Committee membership is as listed above. The committee operates in accordance with written 
terms of reference approved by the Board of Governors. 
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The Audit Committee meets on a termly basis and provides a forum for reporting by the College’s internal, 
financial statement and regularity auditors, who have access to the Committee for independent discussion, 
without the presence of College management. The Committee also receives and considers reports from 
the main FE funding agencies, as they affect the College’s business.  The Committee also approves the 
college’s risk management plan on behalf of the Corporation. 
 
The College’s internal auditors monitor the systems of internal control, risk management controls and 
governance processes in accordance with an agreed plan of input, reporting their findings to management 
and the Audit Committee.  
 
Management are responsible for the implementation of agreed recommendations and progress is 
monitored at each committee meeting.  Internal audit also undertake periodic follow up reviews to ensure 
such recommendations have been implemented. 
 
The Audit Committee also advises the Corporation on the appointment of internal, financial statement and 
regularity auditors and their remuneration for both audit and non-audit work. 
 
Within the five year audit plan internal auditors will look at value for money as part of their remit to help 
ensure public benefit and best value.  Financial statements are shared with the funding agency via the 
finance record which allows benchmarking between colleges as an aid to ensuring best value and public 
benefit. 
 
The Audit committee reports annually to the Board of Governors. 
 
Finance & Resources Committee 
 
The Finance and Resources Committee meets four times per year.  It considers the management accounts 
and performance against KPIs across non-academic areas.  It has regard for solvency and efficiency of the 
organisation and compares the college performance to various benchmarks available.  The committee also 
reviews the annual budget and financial forecast and financial statements in detail on behalf of the main 
Board of Governors. In this way the committee seeks to ensure public benefit and best value for our 
students in the way that the college utilises its resources. 
 
Curriculum and Quality Committee 
 
The Curriculum and Quality Committee considers the academic performance of the college and holds 
Senior management to account for attendance, retention, achievement and success rates as well as 
value added and progression to higher education and employment.  In this way the committee seeks to 
ensure public benefit and best value for our students via the education that they receive. 
 
INTERNAL CONTROL 
 
Scope of Responsibility 
 
The Board of Governors is ultimately responsible for the College’s system of internal control and for 
reviewing its effectiveness. However, such a system is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk 
of failure to achieve business objectives, and can provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance 
against material misstatement or loss. 
 
The Board of Governors has delegated the day to day responsibility to the Principal, as Accounting Officer 
for maintaining a sound system of internal control that supports the achievement of the College’s policies, 
aims and objectives, whilst safeguarding the public funds and assets for which she is personally 
responsible, in accordance with the responsibilities assigned to her in the Financial Memorandum between 
Winstanley College and the FE funding agencies.  She is also responsible for reporting to the Corporation 
any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control. 
 
The purpose of the system of internal control 
 
The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all 
risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives; it can therefore only provide reasonable and not 
absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based upon an on-going process 
designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of College policies, aims and objectives, to 
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evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage 
them efficiently, effectively and economically.  The system of internal control has been in place in 
Winstanley College for the year ended 31 July 2020 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and 
accounts. 
 
Capacity to handle risk 
 
The Board of Governors has reviewed the key risks to which the college is exposed together with the 
operating, financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks.  The Board 
is of the view that there is a formal on-going process for identifying, evaluating and managing the College's 
significant risks that has been in place throughout the period ending 31 July 2020 and up to the date of 
approval of the annual report and accounts. This process is regularly reviewed by the Board of Governors.  
 
The risk and control framework 
 
The system of internal control is based upon a framework of regular management information, 
administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and 
accountability.  In particular it includes: 
 

▪ Comprehensive budgeting systems with an annual budget, which is reviewed and agreed by the 
governing body 

▪ Regular reviews by the governing body of periodic and annual financial reports which indicate 
financial performance against forecasts 

▪ Setting targets to measure financial and other performance 
▪ Clearly defined capital investment control guidelines 
▪ The adoption of formal project management disciplines, where appropriate. 

 
Internal Audit Service 
 
Winstanley College has an internal audit service, which operates in accordance with the requirements of 
the ESFA Post 16 Audit Code of Practice.  The work of the internal audit service is informed by an analysis 
of the risks to which the College is exposed, and annual internal audit plans are based on this analysis.  
The analysis of risks and the internal audit plans are endorsed by the Board of Governors on the 
recommendation of the audit committee.  At minimum annually, the Head of Internal Audit (HIA) provides 
the governing body with a report on internal audit activity in the College.  The report includes the HIA’s 
independent opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of the College’s system of risk management, 
controls and governance processes. 
 
Review of effectiveness 
 
As Accounting Officer, the Principal has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of 
internal control.  Her review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control is informed by: 
 

▪ The work of the internal auditors 
▪ The work of the executive managers within the College who have responsibility for the development 

and maintenance of the internal control framework 
▪ Comments made by the college’s financial statements and regularity auditors in their management 

letters or other reports. 
 
The Principal has been advised on the implications of the result of her review of the effectiveness of the 
system of internal control by the Audit Committee which oversees the work of the internal auditor and a 
plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement of the system is in place. 
 
The senior management team regularly considers key performance and risk indicators, and considers 
possible control issues brought to their attention by their departments.  The senior management team and 
the Audit Committee also receive regular reports from internal audit, which include recommendations for 
improvement.  The Audit Committee’s role in this area is confined to a high level review of the arrangements 
for internal control.  The Board’s agenda during the year includes a consideration of risk and control and it 
receives reports thereon from the senior management team and the Audit Committee.  The emphasis is on 
obtaining the relevant degree of assurance and not merely reporting by exception.  At its October and 
December 2020 meetings the Board carried out the annual assessment for the year ended 31 July 2020 
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by considering documentation from senior management team and internal audit and by taking account of 
events since 31 July 2020. 
 
Internal Audit Opinions and Work completed 
 
Based on the advice of the Audit Committee, informed by its auditors, and the Principal (Accounting 
Officer), the Corporation is of the opinion that the College does have an adequate and effective framework 
for governance, risk management and control, and has fulfilled its statutory responsibility for “the effective 
and efficient use of resources, the solvency of the institution and the body and the safeguarding of their 
assets”.   
 
The specific areas of work undertaken by the internal audit service and reported to the audit committee in 
2019-20 and up to the date of the approval of these financial statements were:- 
 

• Risk Management,  

• Budgetary and Financial Control,  

• Safeguarding, 
• Health and Safety 

• Follow up review 
 

All areas of review returned a “strong” conclusion which indicates that controls were satisfactory, no major 
weaknesses were found, some minor recommendations were identified. 
 
Covid 19 
As a result of the pandemic and subsequent college closure the review of Learner records has been deferred 
until 2020-21. 
 
Going Concern 
 
After making appropriate enquiries the Board of Governors considers that the College has adequate 
resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason it continues to 
adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Approved by the Board of Governors 
and signed on behalf of the Board by: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
James Pearson      Louise Tipping 
Chair       Principal 
14 December 2020     14 December 2020
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STATEMENT OF REGULARITY, PROPRIETY AND COMPLIANCE 
 

The Members of the Board of the College have considered their responsibility to notify the Education and 
Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of material irregularity, impropriety and non-compliance with terms and 
conditions of funding, under the college’s funding agreement.  As part of our consideration we have had 
due regard to the requirements of the funding agreement. 
 
We confirm on behalf of the College Corporation, that after due enquiry, and to the best of our knowledge, 
we are able to identify any material irregular or improper use of funds by the college, or material non-
compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under the college’s funding agreement. 
 
We confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance have been 
discovered to date.  If any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be notified to 
the ESFA. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
James Pearson      Louise Tipping 
Chair       Accounting Officer & Principal 
14 December 2020     14 December 2020 
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STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
 

The Members of the Board of the College, as charity trustees, are required to present audited financial 
statements for each financial year. 
 
Within the terms and conditions of the College’s grant funding agreements and contracts with the ESFA, 
the Board of the College, (the corporation), through its Principal, is required to prepare financial statements 
for each financial year, in accordance with the 2019 Statement of Recommended Practice – Accounting for 
Further and Higher Education, and the UK’s Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, and which give a 
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the College and the result for that year. 
 
In preparing the financial statements the Board is required to: 
 

• select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently 

• make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent 

• state whether applicable Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures 
disclosed and explained in the financial statements 

• prepare financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to assume that the 
College will continue in operation. 

 
The Board is also required to prepare a Members’ Report which describes what it is trying to do and how it 
is going about it, including the legal and administrative status of the College. 
 
The Board is responsible for keeping proper accounting records, which disclose with reasonable accuracy, 
at any time, the financial position of the College and which enable it to ensure that the financial statements 
are prepared in accordance with the relevant legislation of incorporation and other relevant accounting 
standards. It is responsible for taking steps that are reasonably open to it to safeguard assets of the College 
and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities. 
 
The maintenance and integrity of the College website is the responsibility of the Corporation of the College; 
the work carried out by the auditors does not involve consideration of these matters and, accordingly, the 
auditors accept no responsibility for any changes that may have occurred to the financial statements since 
they were initially presented on the website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation 
and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions. 
 
Members of the Board of Governors are responsible for ensuring that expenditure and income are applied 
for the purposes intended by Parliament and that the financial transactions conform to the authorities that 
govern them.  In addition, they are responsible for ensuring that funds from the ESFA are used only in 
accordance with the ESFA’s grant funding agreements and contracts, and any other conditions that may 
from time to time be prescribed.  Members of the Board of Governors must ensure that there are appropriate 
financial and management controls in place sufficient to safeguard public and other funds and ensure that 
they are used properly.  In addition, Members of the Board are responsible for securing the economical, 
efficient and effective management of the College’s resources and expenditure, so that the benefits that 
should be derived from the application of public funds from the ESFA are not put at risk. 

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Governors and signed on its behalf by: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
James Pearson 
Chair 
14 December 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE GOVERNING BODY OF WINSTANLEY COLLEGE 
 
Opinion  

We have audited the financial statements of Winstanley College for the period ended 31 July 2020 which 
comprise the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in reserves, the balance sheet, 
the cash flow statement and the related notes.  The financial reporting framework that has been applied in 
their preparation is applicable law, United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting 
Standard 102 ‘the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland’ (United 
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and the Accounts Direction 2019 to 2020 issued by the 
Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA). 

In our opinion the financial statements: 

- give a true and fair view of the state of the College's affairs as at 31 July 2020 and of its income 
and expenditure for the period then ended; 

- have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting 
Practice; and 

- have been prepared in accordance with the Statement of Recommended Practice: Accounting for 
Further and Higher Education (the 2019 FE HE SORP) and the Accounts Direction 2019 to 2020 
issued by the ESFA. 

Basis for opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and 
applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors 
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the 
College in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements 
in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.  

Conclusions relating to going concern 

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us 
to report to you where: 

- the Corporation's use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial 
statements is not appropriate; or 

- the Corporation has not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties 
that may cast significant doubt about the College's ability to continue to adopt the going concern 
basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial 
statements are authorised for issue. 

Other information 

The Members of the Corporation are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises 
the information included in the annual report, but does not include the financial statements and our Report 
of the Independent Auditors thereon. 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any 
form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information 
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial 
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based 
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, 
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Opinion on other matters 

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit: 

• the information given in the Report of the Governing Body for the financial year for which the 

financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and 

• the Report of the Governing Body has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal 

requirements. 
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Matters on which we are required to report by exception 

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the College and its environment obtained in the course 
of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Report of the Governing Body. 

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters prescribed by the Post 16 Audit Code of 
Practice issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency which requires us to report to you if, in our 
opinion: 

• proper accounting records have not been kept; 

• the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or 

• all the information and explanations required for the audit were not received. 

Responsibilities of Governors 

As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities of the Members of the Board of Governors 
above, the Governing Body is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being 
satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the Governing Body determines 
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, the Governing Body is responsible for assessing the College's ability 
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the 
going concern basis of accounting unless the Governing Body either intends to liquidate the College or to 
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue a Report of the Independent 
Auditors that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement 
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in 
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on 
the basis of these financial statements.  

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial 
Reporting Council's website at www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.  This description forms part of our 
Report of the Independent Auditors.   

Use of our report 

This report is made solely to the Corporation, as a body, in accordance with Article 22 of the College’s 
Articles of Government. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Corporation, as 
a body, those matters we are required to state to them in an auditors' report and for no other purpose. To 
the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the 
College and the Corporation, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have 
formed.  

 
 
 
 
 
 

Murray Smith LLP 
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors 
Darland House 
44 Winnington Hill 
Northwich  
Cheshire  
CW8 1AU 
 
14 December 2020
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND 
EXPENDITURE for the year ending 31 July 2020 

 Note 2020 
£’000 

2019 
£’000 

     
INCOME     
Funding body grants   2 8,130 8,035 
Tuition fees and education contracts  3 17 24 
Other grants and contracts  4 39 56 
Other income  5 7 51 
Investment income including defined benefit interest  6 218 266      

Total income    8,411 8,432      

EXPENDITURE     
Staff costs including current service cost of defined benefit 

pension 
 7 6,366 6,507 

Other operating expenses  9 1,495 1,678 
Depreciation  13 794 741 
Interest on defined benefit pension liability  10 229 253 
   

  

Total expenditure    8,884 9,179      

Deficit before tax and other gains or losses   (473) (747) 
     
Loss on disposal of assets 
Taxation 

  
11 

- 
- 

- 
- 

   
  

Deficit for the year 
 
Actuarial gain (loss) in respect of LGPS pension 

  
 
 

(473) 
 

(1203) 

(747) 
 

(801) 
   

  

Total unrestricted comprehensive income for the 
year  

  (1,676) (1,548) 

   
  

  

The Statement of comprehensive Income and expenditure is in respect of continuing activities. 
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN RESERVES 
For the two years ended 31 July 2020 

 

  
 
 
 

 

Income and 
Expenditure 

Account 
 

£’000 

Revaluation 
Reserve 

 
 

£’000 

Total 
Reserves 

 
 

£’000 
      

Balance at 31 July 2018   16,393 2,003 18,396 

Deficit for the year to 31 July 2019 
 
Transfer between revaluation and income and 

expenditure reserves 
 
Actuarial loss on LGPS pension scheme 
 

  (747) 
 

74 
 
 

(801) 
 

- 
 

(74) 
 
 

- 

(747) 
 

- 
 
 

(801) 

   
   

Total comprehensive income net of 
expenditure for the year including reserve 
movements 

  (1,474) (74) (1,548) 

   
   

Balance of reserves at 31 July 2019   14,919 1,929 16,848 

   
   

Deficit for the year to 31 July 2020 
 
Transfer between revaluation and income and 

expenditure reserves 
 
Actuarial loss on LGPS pension scheme 
  

  
 
 
 

(473) 
 

73 
 
 

(1,203) 

- 
 

(73) 
 
 

- 

(473) 
 

- 
 
 

(1,203) 

   
   

Total comprehensive income net of expenditure 
for the year including reserve movements 

  (1,603) (73) (1,676) 

 

   
   

Balance of reserves at 31 July 2020   13,316 1,856 15,172 
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION  
as at 31 July 2020  

  Note 2020 
£’000 

2019 
£’000      

Non Current Assets     
Tangible Fixed Assets  12 17,881 18,279      

Current Assets     
Stocks   6 6 
Trade and other receivables  13 144 73 
Cash and cash equivalents   5,032 4,943      

   5,182 5,022 
Less: Creditors -amounts falling due 
 within one year 

  
14 

 
(875) 

 
(1,089)      

Net Current Assets   4,307 3,933      

Total Assets less current liabilities    
22,188 

 
22,212      

Creditors – amounts falling due after more than 
 one year 

  
15 

 
(3,025) 

 
(3,025) 

Provisions 
Defined benefit obligations 

  
17-18 

 
(3,991) 

 
(2,339) 

     
   

  

Total Net Assets   15,172 16,848 
   

  

     
        

  
Unrestricted Reserves     
Revaluation reserve   1,856 1,929 
Income and expenditure account   13,316 14,919 
   

  

Total Unrestricted Reserves   15,172 16,848      

 

The financial statements on pages 29 to 51 were approved and authorised for issue by the Board on the 
14 December 2020 and were signed on its behalf on that date by: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
James Pearson  Louise Tipping 
Chair  Principal and Accounting Officer 
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
For the year ended 31 July 2020 
 

   Note 2020 
 

£’000 

2019 
 

£’000 
Cash flow from operating activities      
Deficit for the year   

 
 (473) (747) 

Adjustment for non-cash items      

Depreciation 
Release of capital grants 
(Increase)/ Decrease in stocks 

 12 
15 

794 
(128) 

- 

741 
(94) 

- 
(Increase)/ Decrease in trade and other receivables  13 (50) 16 
Increase / (Decrease) in creditors due within one year 
Increase in provision for voluntary severance 

 14 
14 

(44) 
(210) 

32 
210 

Non cash elements of defined benefit pension:- 
Interest income on defined benefit pension 
Non cash element of LGPS pension service cost 
Interest on defined benefit pension liability 

  
6 
7 

10 
 

 
(175) 
395 
229 

 
(216) 
367 
253 

 
Adjustment for investing or financing activities 

     

Investment income – interest receivable   6 (43) (50) 
Loss on sale of tangible fixed assets    - 9 
    

  

Net Cash flow from operating activities    295 521 
    

  

Cash Flows from investing activities    
 

 

Proceeds from sale of fixed assets    - - 
Investment income – actual cash received 
Grants received 

  6+13 48 
105 

48 
127 

Payments made to acquire tangible fixed assets    12 (396) (1,340) 
    

  

   (243) (1,165) 
    

  

Cash Flows from financing activities      
New unsecured loans    39 - 
Repayments of amounts borrowed     (2) (3) 
    

  

    37 (3) 
    

  

Increase / (Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 
in the year 

   89 (647) 

    
  

 
 
 
Cash and equivalents at the start of the year 

    
 
 

4,943 

 
 
 

5,590 
      

Cash and equivalents at the end of the year    5,032 4,943 
    

  

28

DocuSign Envelope ID: C3435BE3-DA76-4CAC-930A-F4FF9760DA34



 

WINSTANLEYCOLLEGE 
 
 
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS 
For the year ended 31 July 2020 

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

 

Statement of Accounting Policies 

The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items which are considered 
material in relation to the financial statements. 

Basis of preparation 

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the Statement of Recommended Practice:  
Accounting for Further and Higher Education 2019 (the 2019 FE HE Sorp), the College Accounts Direction 
for 2019 to 2020 and in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 102 – “The Financial Reporting 
Standard applicable in the United Kingdom and Republic of Ireland” (FRS102). The college is a public 
benefit entity and has therefore applied the relevant public benefit requirements of FRS102. 

The preparation of financial statements in compliance with FRS 102 requires the use of certain critical 
accounting estimates.  It also requires management to exercise judgement in applying the College’s 
accounting policies. 

Basis of Accounting 

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the historical cost convention as modified by the 
use of previous valuations as deemed cost at transition for certain non-current assets.  

Going Concern 

The activities of the College, together with the factors likely to affect its future development and performance 
are set out in the Members Report. The financial position of the College, its cash-flow, liquidity and 
borrowings are presented in the Financial Statements and accompanying Notes. 

The College currently has negligible borrowing in the form of Salix energy efficiency loans and so is in no 
danger of breach of any banking covenants.  In addition the college has strong cash reserves spread over 
a number of banks to minimise the risk of banking failure.  The college is 97% funded by the ESFA and so 
is affected by Government funding changes linked to austerity or Brexit, and by implementation of funding 
cuts and taxation differences that damage the college sector more deeply than the academy or free school 
sectors.  The college has no guarantee either that the DFE will underwrite its pension deficit. 

However the College has a reasonable expectation that it has adequate cash resources to continue in 
operational existence for the next 24 months at least, and for this reason will continue to adopt the going 
concern basis in the preparation of its Financial Statements. 

Recognition of income 

Government revenue grants including Funding Agency recurrent grants and other grants are recognised 
under the accrual model as permitted by FRS 102.  Funding Agency recurrent grants are measured in line 
with best estimates for the period of what is receivable and depend on the particular income stream 
involved. Any under or over achievement for the Adult Skills Budget is adjusted for and reflected in the level 
of recurrent grant recognised in the income and expenditure account. The final grant income is normally 
determined with the conclusion of the year end reconciliation process with the funding body following the 
year end.  16-18 ESFA funding is not normally subject to reconciliation and is therefore not subject to 
contract adjustments in year.    However future years funding is based upon prior performance on a lagged 
basis. 

Grants from non-government sources are recognised in income when the college is entitled to the income 
and performance related conditions have been satisfied.  Income received in advance of performance 
related conditions being met is recognised as deferred income within creditors on the balance sheet and 
released to income as the conditions are satisfied. 

Capital Grant Funding – Government capital grants are capitalised, held as deferred income and recognised 
in income over the expected useful life of the asset, under the accrual model as permitted by FRS102.  
Income received in advance of performance related conditions being met is recognised as deferred income 
within creditors on the Balance Sheet and released to income as conditions are met. 
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS 

Fee Income - Income from Tuition Fees is stated gross of any expenditure which is not a discount and is 
recognised in the period for which it is received and includes all fees chargeable to students.  The costs of 
any fees waived by the college are included as expenditure in Note 9. 

Income from grants, contracts and other services rendered is included to the extent of the completion of 
the contract or service concerned. 

All income from short-term deposits is credited to the income and expenditure account in the period in which 
it is earned on a receivable basis. 

Agency arrangements- The college acts as an agent in the payment of certain discretionary support funds 
such as bursary and free meals.  Related payments received from the funding bodies and subsequent 
disbursements to students are excluded from the income and expenditure of the College where the College 
is exposed to minimal risk or enjoys minimal economic benefit related to the transaction. 

Accounting for Post-employment Benefits 

Post-employment benefits to employees of the College are provided by the Teachers' Pension Scheme 
(TPS) and the Greater Manchester Pension Fund (GMPF).  These are defined benefit plans which are 
externally funded and were formerly contracted out of the State Second Pension.  

Teachers’ Pension Scheme (TPS) 

The TPS is an unfunded scheme.  Contributions to the TPS are calculated so as to spread the cost of 
pensions over employees’ working lives with the College in such a way that the pension cost is a 
substantially level percentage of current and future pensionable payroll.  The contributions are determined 
by qualified actuaries on the basis of valuations using a prospective benefit method. 

The TPS is a multi-employer scheme and there is insufficient information available to use defined benefit 
accounting.  The TPS is therefore treated as a defined contribution plan and the contributions recognised 
as an expense in the income statement in the periods during which services are rendered by employees. 

Greater Manchester Pension Fund (GMPF / LGPS) 

The LGPS (local government pension scheme) is a funded scheme.  In years up to 31 July 2016 the college 
assets were pooled with other sixth forms in Greater Manchester in the small college pool, so that there 
was insufficient information to use defined benefit accounting.  However during 2016-17 the Greater 
Manchester area review caused the break-up of the small college pool and this has led to a change in the 
way that the scheme is accounted for.  The assets of the LGPS are measured using closing fair values.  
LGPS liabilities are measured using the projected unit credit method and discounted at the current rate of 
return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to the liabilities.  The actuarial 
valuations are obtained at least triennially and are updated at each balance sheet date. The amounts 
charged to operating surplus are the current service costs and the cost of scheme introductions, benefit 
changes, settlements and curtailments.  They are included as part of staff costs as incurred.    

Net interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset is also recognised in the Statement of 
Comprehensive Income and comprises the interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest 
income on the scheme assets, calculated by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning 
of the period by the rate used to discount the benefit obligations.  The difference between the interest 
income on the scheme assets and the actual return on the scheme assets  is recognised in interest and 
other finance costs. 

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in actuarial gains and losses. 

 

Short Term Employment Benefits 

Short term employment benefits such as salaries and compensated absences (holiday pay) are recognised 
as an expense in the year in which the employees render service to the College.  Any unused benefits are 
accrued and measured as the additional amount the College expects to pay as a result of the unused 
entitlement.  As teaching staff are on holiday for much of the month of August and the year end is 31 July 
then on average one month of holiday is still due to be paid at the end of each year.   

 

 

 

30

DocuSign Envelope ID: C3435BE3-DA76-4CAC-930A-F4FF9760DA34



 

WINSTANLEYCOLLEGE 
 
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS 

Enhanced Pensions 

The cost of providing enhanced pensions to a former member of staff can be considerable.  As a general 
rule enhancements are only considered in exceptional circumstances.  Where the member of staff retires 
with an enhanced pension generally the cost is settled as a single payment upon retirement.   

Non- Current Assets - Tangible fixed assets 

Land and buildings 

Land and buildings inherited from the Local Education Authority are stated in the balance sheet at valuation 
on the basis of deemed cost being the revalued amount at the date of that valuation.  Land and buildings 
were valued by Edwards & Co, a firm of independent chartered surveyors for the 1994 Financial 
Statements.  Depreciated replacement cost was used at that time as the open market value for existing use 
was not readily obtainable.  Land and buildings acquired since incorporation are included in the balance 
sheet at cost.  Freehold land is not depreciated.  Freehold buildings are depreciated over their expected 
useful economic life to the College of 50 years.  The college’s main building has been in use since it was 
built in 1954 so it will be fully depreciated by 2044 when it will be 90 years young. 

The college has a policy of depreciating major refurbishments to buildings over the period of their useful 
economic life of between 20 and 50 years. 

Where land and buildings are acquired with the aid of specific grants, they are capitalised and depreciated 
as above.  The related grants are credited to a deferred income account within creditors, and are released 
to the income and expenditure account over the expected useful economic life of the related asset on a 
systematic basis consistent with the depreciation policy.  The deferred income is allocated between 
creditors due within one year and those due after more than one year. 

A review of the impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate 
that the carrying amount of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. 

On adoption of FRS102, the college followed the transitional provision to retain the book value of land and 
buildings, which were re-valued in 1994, as deemed cost, but has chosen not to adopt a policy of periodic 
revaluations of these properties in the future.  These values are retained subject to the requirement to test 
assets for impairment in accordance with FRS102. 

Assets under construction 

Assets under construction are accounted for at cost, based upon the value of architects’ certificates and 
other direct costs, incurred to 31 July.  They are not depreciated until they are brought into use and the final 
certificate of making good defects and final accounts have been confirmed by the quantity surveyors. 

Where the college is undertaking development work such as development of plans for the construction of 
a new building, it will write off to the income and expenditure account any related costs, until such time as 
the point of certainty of proceeding has crystallised.  This point of certainty may depend upon approval from 
local planning office or from the funding council if grants are required for the project to proceed.  Specifically 
for ESFA projects the point of certainty will be taken as approval of an Application in Detail. 

Where a grant is payable by the funding council in support of development work, and this development has 
not yet reached a point of certainty, then this grant will be released to income and expenditure in proportion 
to the write off of development costs to which the grant relates.   

Subsequent expenditure on existing fixed assets 

Where significant expenditure is incurred on tangible fixed assets it is charged to the income and 
expenditure account in the period it is incurred, unless it increases the future benefits to the college by 
meeting one of the following criteria, in which case it is capitalised and depreciated on the relevant basis: 

• Market value of the fixed asset has subsequently improved 

• Asset capacity increases 

• Substantial improvement in the quality of output or reduction in operating costs 

• Significant extension of the asset’s life beyond that conferred by repairs and maintenance. 
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Equipment 

Equipment costing less than £500 per individual item is recognised as expenditure in the period of 
acquisition except for certain desirable items costing more than £200 purchased as part of a set.  All other 
equipment is capitalised at cost.   

Equipment is depreciated over its useful economic life as follows: 

General equipment 20% per year 

Computer equipment 33% per year 

Furniture and Plant 5%-10% per year 

Where equipment is acquired with the aid of specific grants it is capitalised and depreciated in accordance 
with the above policy, with the related grant being credited to a deferred capital grant account and released 
to the income and expenditure account over the expected life of the related equipment. 

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate that 
the carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable.  Shortfalls between the carrying value of fixed 
assets and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments.  Impairment losses are recognised 
in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure. 

Operating Leases 

Costs in respect of operating leases are charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure on a straight line basis over the term of the lease. 

Inventories 

Inventories are stated at the lower of their cost and net realisable value.  Where necessary, provision is 
made for obsolete, slow moving and defective items.  The main item classed as stock is biomass fuel for 
the college heating systems. 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash includes cash in hand, deposits repayable on demand and overdrafts.  Deposits are repayable on 
demand if they are in practice available within 24 hours without penalty. 

Cash equivalents are short term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of 
cash with insignificant risk of change in value.  An investment qualifies as a cash equivalent when it has 
maturity of 3 months or less from the date of acquisition. 

Maintenance of premises 

The cost of routine corrective maintenance is charged to the income and expenditure account in the period 
it is incurred.  The College has a 10-year planned maintenance programme, which is reviewed in line with 
the college accommodation strategy. 

Taxation 

The college is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 Finance Act 2010 and 
therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes.  Accordingly, the 
college is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains received within categories 
covered by Sections 478-488 (Chapter 3 Part 11) Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256 of the Taxation 
of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are applied exclusively to charitable 
purposes. 

The College receives no similar exemption in respect of Value Added Tax.  The college is exempted from 
levying VAT on most of the services it provides to students.  For this reason the College is generally unable 
to recover input VAT it suffers on goods and services purchased.  Non pay expenditure and fixed asset 
additions are therefore shown inclusive of VAT.  The college is not registered for VAT and is unable to 
make any partial recovery of VAT.   

Provisions and contingent liabilities 

Provisions are recognised when the College has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a 
past event and it is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required to settle the obligation and 
a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 

Where the time value of money is material, the amount expected to be required to settle the obligation is 
recognised at present value using a pre-tax discount rate.  The unwinding of the discount rate is recognised 
as a finance cost in the statement of comprehensive income in the period it arises. 
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A contingent liability arises from a past event that gives the College a possible obligation whose existence 
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events not wholly within the control 
of the College.  Contingent liabilities also arise in circumstances where a provision would otherwise be 
made but either it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required or the amount of the obligation 
cannot be measured reliably. 

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the balance sheet but are disclosed in the notes to the financial 
statements. 

Judgements in applying accounting policies and key sources of estimation of uncertainty 

In preparing these financial statements, management have made the following judgements: 

• Determined whether leases entered into by the college as lessee are operating or finance 
leases.  These decisions depend upon whether the risks and rewards of ownership have 
been transferred to the lessee on a lease by lease basis. 

• Determined whether there are indicators of impairment of the College’s tangible assets. 
Factors taken into consideration in reaching such a decision include the economic viability 
and expected future financial performance of the asset and where it is a component of a 
larger cash generating unit, the viability and expected future performance of that unit. 

Other key sources of estimation uncertainty 

• Tangible fixed Assets 

Tangible fixed assets, other than investment properties, are depreciated over their useful lives 
taking into account residual values, where appropriate. The actual lives of the assets and residual 
values are assessed annually and may vary depending on a number of factors. In re-assessing 
asset lives, factors such as technological innovation and maintenance programmes are taken into 
account. Residual value assessments consider issues such as future market conditions, the 
remaining life of the asset and projected disposal values.  As there is not an open market for 
educational buildings the value for buildings is based upon historic cost or revaluation whereas 
insured values are based upon costs of reconstruction.  If the site were sold off for housing 
development then the value of the land net of demolition might not be as great as the value 
shown in the accounts on a going concern basis.   
 

• Greater Manchester Pension Fund 

The present value of the LGPS defined benefit liability depends upon a number of factors that are 
determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions.  The assumptions used in 
determining the net cost (income) for pensions include the discount rate.  Any changes in these 
assumptions which are disclosed in note 17, will impact the carrying amount of the pension liability.  
A full valuation of the scheme has been undertaken at 31 March 2019 but uncertainty over Brexit 
and the McCloud judgement and the discount rate of future pension obligations have caused the 
deficit to increasse.  The scheme deficit assumes that the college continues to contribute over the 
long term employment of its staff.  The scheme deficit in the event of a college ceasing to operate 
can be much greater and the DFE does not underwrite the college deficit in the way that it would 
do so for academy trusts.   The deficit under FRS102 may be different to the deficit as reported by 
the scheme itself.  FRS102 uses bond yields to discount the cost of future liabilities and is not able 
to use the yield of other investments which the scheme actuary may use when setting employer 
contributions.   Further information may be found on the GMPF website. 
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2. FUNDING BODY GRANTS 
  2020 

£’000 
2019 

£’000 
 

ESFA 16-18 funding 
ESFA Teachers Pension Grant 
ESFA 19+ Adult Skills funding clawback 
ESFA Formula maintenance grant 

Recurrent 
Intermittent  

Recurrent 

7,655 
254 

- 
45 

7,850 
- 

(2) 
46 

ESFA High needs student funding Element 2 
ESFA High needs funding top up via Local Authorities 

Specific - 
48 

- 
47 

Releases of Funding Agency deferred capital grants Specific 128 94 
Bursary funds & Free school meals ( see note 21)  Recurrent - -  

 
  

 
 

8,130 8,035 
 

 
  

Education and Skills Funding Agency recurrent grants are shown above as recurrent, and non-recurrent 
grants are shown as specific, depending upon whether they are payable year on year or only intermittently 
or are being withdrawn.   

 

16-18 Funding is adjusted on a lagged basis for changes in student numbers.  Funded student numbers 
in 19-20 were 1908 down from 1949 in 2018-19, and this led to a dip in 16-18 Funding grant of £195k. 
Funding per student has fallen to £4,012 in 2019-20 reaching its lowest level in cash terms since 2003-
04 when our 1,647 students were then funded at £3,994 each.  

Ahead of the general election in September 2019 the Chancellor, S Javid, announced the first increase 
in 16-18 funding per student for 10 years up to £4188 from August 2020.  In addition further cost weight 
funding for science subjects and a “high value” course premium should increase the funding per student 
by £651 to £4663 per student in 2020-21. This will be the same cash per student that we received in 2008 
ahead of the financial crash.  Although in real terms this still amounts to a cut to A level funding of 34% 
over 12 years, we are grateful that funding has finally moved forwards after 10 years of austerity.    

Owing to the Covid19 flu pandemic impact upon UK borrowing and post Brexit impact upon the economy, 
the college remains concerned that the Treasury may bring forth further austerity on 16-18 funding in the 
near future.  The Teachers’ Pension Grant has only been confirmed until March 2021 pending the 
outcome of the next spending review, even though employer pension costs will remain at 23.6%. 

 

The College has students on Education Health and Care plans who have their funding topped up to pay 
for their additional support needs.  This funding is from the  ESFA in origin but is paid via the local 
Authority. 

 

3. TUITION FEES AND EDUCATION CONTRACTS 

 2020 
£’000 

2019 
£’000 

 

 Tuition Fees:- Home  Examination fees 
 

17 
 

24 
 

 

   

 17 24    

 The above figure includes fees of £nil paid by employers of students.  There were no 19+ fee paying 
students in 2020.  The move to make examinations linear means exam fees are also in decline as 
there is limited scope to enter students for a re-sit.  The college is not permitted to charge exam costs 
to 16-18 students but may do so to private candidates to cover costs of exam registration and 
invigilation.  The Covid 19 pandemic led to the cancellation of summer exams in 2020 and a number 
of exam entry fees were refunded. 
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4. OTHER GRANTS AND CONTRACTS 

 2020 
£’000 

2019 
£’000 

Teacher Education – PGCE placements 3 6 
Staff Recovery examiner costs and inspection 
Careers for schools 

4 
32 

6 
44 

   
 

  

 39 56 
 

  

 
The college offered a careers service to schools, at cost, in a partnership with St John Rigby College.  The 
challenging funding situation for high schools has meant that some schools have opted to take the service 
in house. 
 
 
 
 
5. OTHER INCOME 

 2020 
£’000 

2019 
£’000 

Catering operations - 37 
Other income 7 14    

 7 51 
 

  

 
In March 2020 the college went in to lockdown and the catering team were furloughed by their employer.  
In past years the contract guaranteed a return to the college to cover costs of electricity and equipment and 
repairs to the canteen.  The contract caterer has disputed its payment of the guaranteed return to the 
college and has not yet agreed on a final position for the 2019-20 contract year. 

 

 

6. INVESTMENT INCOME 

 2020 
£’000 

2019 
£’000 

Other interest receivable 
Interest on defined benefit pension scheme assets 

43 
175 

50 
216 

 
  

 218 266 

 
  

Bank interest rates have declined at the time of the Covid-19 lockdown from 1 to 1.1% to 0.2 to 0.4% 

 

7. STAFF COSTS 

The number of persons (including senior staff) employed by the college during the year, on an average 
headcount basis was: 

 2020 
Number 

2019 
Number 

Teaching Staff 
Non-Teaching Staff 

78 
93 

81 
108 

 
  

Total average headcount 171 189 
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The average number of persons (including senior staff) employed by the College during the year, 
expressed as full-time equivalents, was: 
 2020 

Number 
2019 

Number 
Teaching Departments – Teaching Staff 70 72 
Teaching Departments – Other Staff 7 7 
Teaching Support Services – Libraries 4 4 
Teaching Support Services – IT 2 3 
Teaching Support Services –Study Support & Tutorial 12 11 
Other Support Services 6 9 
Administration and Central Services 26 26 
General Education Expenditure – Examinations 1 2 
Premises 13 13 
 

  

Total Staff FTE 141 147 
 

  

Teaching Staff FTE 
Non-Teaching Staff FTE 

70 
71 

72 
75 

 
  

Total Staff FTE 141 147 
 

  

   
Staff costs for the above persons: £’000 £’000 
Teaching Departments – Teaching Staff 3,758 3,760 
Teaching Departments – Other Staff 181 179 
Teaching Support Services – Libraries 93 78 
Teaching Support Services – IT 71 82 
Teaching Support Services – Study Support & Tutorial 344 295 
Other Support Services 188 200 
Administration and Central Services 1,061 954 
General Education Expenditure – Examinations - 38 
Premises 
Contractual Restructuring Cost including provision  
Adjustment to Holiday Pay Accrual 

 305 
- 

(30) 

298 
256 

- 
 

  

Total Staff Cost before non-cash pension adjustment 
Non-cash element of LGPS pension service cost 
Total staff costs including pension adjustment 

5,971 
395 

6,366 

6,140 
367 

6,507 
 

  

Teaching staff Cost 3,728 3,927 
Non Teaching staff Cost including LGPS pension service costs 2,638 2,580 
 

  

 6,366 6,507 
 

 

  

Analysis of staff cost by element 
 

£’000 £’000 

Wages and salaries 4,570 4,672 
Temporary Staff  104 68 
Restructuring cost including provision - 256 
Employers National Insurance Costs 392 416 
Employers pension costs cash element 
Employers pension costs non cash element of LGPS service cost 

927 
395 

720 
367 

Adjustment to Holiday Pay accrual (30) - 
Apprenticeship Levy 8 8 
 

  

 6,366 6,507 
 

  

Employment costs for staff on permanent contracts 6163 6,289 
Employment costs for staff on temporary contracts 203 218 
 

  

 6,366 6,507 
 

  

36

DocuSign Envelope ID: C3435BE3-DA76-4CAC-930A-F4FF9760DA34



 

WINSTANLEYCOLLEGE 
 
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS 

 

In September 2020 the employer contribution to the Teachers’ Pension scheme increased by 7.1% from 
16.5% to 23.6%. At the time the increase was announced funding per student was not set to increase and 
there was no promise from the DFE/ ESFA that the pension cost increase would be met.  Therefore in 
summer 2019 the college undertook a voluntary severance scheme to reduce its overall wage cost ahead 
of the pension increase.  Headcount, FTE numbers and wage costs were thus reduced across Teaching 
and Non-teaching roles. 

There was no increase in funding per student to support an inflation wage settlement in 2019-20, and after 
a protracted negotiation, the Sixth Form Colleges Association and unions agreed on a phased pay deal of 
1.5% backdated to 1 September 2019 and a further 1.25% from 1 April 2020.    In April 2020 there was a 
further increase to the employer pension contribution to the support staff pension scheme from 16.5% to 
19.1% which will add a further 2.6% to non teaching staff pay costs. 

 

8.  KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL 

Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing 
and controlling the activities of the College and are represented by the College Senior Management Team 
which comprises the Principal, Vice Principal, Director of Finance and Resources, Assistant Principal 
Curriculum, Assistant Principal Guidance and the Support Services Director.  The Principal, Vice Principal, 
Director of Finance and Resources and Clerk to the Governors are appointed by the Board of Governors 
and are classed as “Senior post-holders.”  Senior Post-holders are defined as the Principal (or Accounting 
Officer) and holders of the other senior posts whom the Board have selected for the purposes of the articles 
of government of the College relating to the appointment and promotion of staff who are appointed by the 
Board of Governors.  Remuneration of senior post-holders is determined by the Remuneration Committee 
who take account of benchmark data across the sixth form sector reported via the Sixth Form Colleges 
Association. 

 Year ended 31 July 
2020 

Year ended 31 July 
2019 

 Number 
Senior post- 

Holders 

Other Key 
management 

 

Number 
Senior post- 

Holders 

Other key 
management 

 
Number of key management personnel 

including the Accounting Officer 
4 3 4 3 

The number of key management personnel, including senior post-holders and the principal (accounting 
officer), who received emoluments excluding employer national insurance and pension contributions but 
including benefits in kind, in the following ranges was: 

 Year ended 31 July 
2020 

Year ended 31 July 
2019 

 Number 
Senior post- 

holders 

Other key 
management 

 

Number 
Senior post- 

holders 

Other key 
management 

 

£60,001 to £70,000 1 - 1 - 
£70,001 to £80,000 1 - 1 - 
£90,001 to £100,000 
£100,001 to £110,000 

- 
1 

- 
- 

- 
1 

- 
- 

 

Key management personnel pay costs are made up as follows: 

 2020 2019 
Key management pay costs are made up as follows: £’000 £’000 
Salaries – gross of salary sacrifice for child care 426 418 
Employers National Insurance or social security 50 49 
Benefits in kind - - 
Employers Pension contributions 91 69 
 

  

Total Key management personnel pay costs 567 536    
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There were no amounts due to key management personnel that were waived in the year, salary sacrifice 
arrangements related only to child care vouchers and cycle purchase which are available to all staff.  

The above emoluments include amounts payable to the Principal (Accounting Officer) and the highest paid 
senior post holder of: 

 Year ended 
31 July 

2020 
£’000 

Principal 

Year ended 
31 July 

2019 
£’000 

Principal 

Salary 102 100 
Benefits in kind - - 
Pension contributions 24 17    

The pension contributions of the Principal and senior post-holders are in respect of employer’s contributions 
to the Teachers’ Pension Scheme or Local Government Pension Scheme and are paid according to the 
same scheme pay bands as for other employees.  The employer contribution rate to the Teachers’ Pension 
Scheme was increased to 23.6% from 16.5% in September 2020. 

The accounting officer’s basic salary divided by the median pay of all other college employees (all on a full-
time equivalent basis) at 31 July 2020 is 3.6 (2019 4.2).  The accounting officer’s total emoluments divided 
by the median pay of all other college employees (all on a full-time equivalent basis) is 3.6 at 31 July 2020 
(2019 4.2) . 

The members of the Board of Governors other than the Principal and the staff members did not receive any 
payment from the College other than the reimbursement of travel and subsistence expenses incurred in the 
course of their duties.   

No compensation for loss of office or payment in lieu of notice was made, to any existing or former senior 
post holder, or key management personnel, in the period. 

 

 

9. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES 

 2020 
£’000 

2019 
£’000 

Teaching Departments 139 185 
Teaching Support Services – Libraries 9 11 
Teaching Support Services – IT 92 78 
Teaching Support Services – Study Support 6 8 
Other Support Services – Staff Training 50 34 
Other Support Services – Careers welfare, student services & awards 7 25 
Other Support Services – Subsidy towards student travel costs 
Other Support Services – Spend on Bursary and FSM in excess of ESFA  
Grant funding – see note 21 

108 
 

12 

220 
 

- 
Administration and Central Services 185 167 
General Education Expenditure – Schools liaison & admissions  71 87 
General Education Expenditure – Examinations 318 350 
Estates – Running Costs 237 275 
Estates – Routine Maintenance 108 86 
Planned Maintenance & Refurbishments 
Covid19 costs 

86 
30 

138 
- 

Loss on disposal of Fixed Assets - - 
Catering repairs and equipment 
Catering provision for loss of income during Covid lockdown 

10 
27 

14 

   

 1,495 1,678    
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Teaching related expenses including exams and other support 
Administration and non-teaching related expenses 

741 
288 

911 
268 

Property related expenses 466 499 
 

  

 1,495 1,678 
 

  

Other operating expenses include:- 
Auditors' remuneration 

  

Financial Statements & Regularity Auditors 
Small fund account & TPS independent examinations  

9 
1 

9 
1 

Internal Auditors 6 7 
Hire of Equipment –operating leases  19 20    

 
The college approved a more modest accommodation strategy in 2010 following the cancellation of 
rebuilding projects by the LSC, this has since been reviewed in 2014 and 2019. The college had to 
reduce spend on planned maintenance owing to other budget pressures such as administration costs 
and costs of responding to the covid19 flu pandemic. 
 

 
10. INTEREST PAYABLE AND OTHER FINANCE COSTS 

 2020 
£’000 

2019 
£’000 

Interest cost on defined benefit obligation 229 253 
 

  

Total interest payable 229 253 
 

  

Salix energy efficiency loans are interest free. 

As part of its 2020 CIF bid the college has drawn down a DFE/Treasury Loan to finance the VAT 
cost element of the works which it cannot recover from HMRC as it is not an academy.  This loan of 
£31k will attract interest at a rate of 2.29% over 10 years. 

 
 
 
11. TAXATION 

 
The governors do not believe that the College, a statutory charity, was liable for any corporation tax 
arising out of its activities during this year.   
 
Input VAT remains an irrecoverable cost to the college.  Academies, Free schools, UTCs and local 
authority sixth forms are able to recover VAT and this remains a major taxation injustice to the sector.   
 
The college pays 20% business rates to the local authority as a charity.  Academy Sector Schools 
and Sixth Form Colleges are able to reclaim their business rates from the Department for Education. 
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12. NON CURRENT ASSETS – PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 
 

 Freehold 
Land and 
Buildings 

£’000 

 
 

Equipment 
£’000 

Assets 
  Under 

Construction 
 £’000 

 
 

Total 
£’000 

Cost or valuation     
At 1 August 2019 21,435 5,751 980 

 
28,166 

 
Additions - 388 8 396 
Disposals (5) (32) - (37) 
Reclassified - - - -      

At 31 July 2020 21,430 6,107 988 28,525      

Depreciation     
At 1 August 2019 5,522 4,365 - 9,887 
Charge for the year 452 342 - 794 
Eliminated in respect of disposals (5) (32) - (37)      

At 31 July 2020 5,969 4,675 - 10,644      

Net book value     
At 31 July 2019 15,913 1,386 980 18,279      

At 31 July 2020 15,461 1,432 988 17,881 
     

Inherited 1,856 - - 1,856 
Financed by capital grant 2,886 236 - 3,122 
Other 10,719 1,196 988 12,903      

At 31 July 2020 15,461 1,432 988 17,881      

 

Land and buildings were valued for the purpose of the 1994 financial statements at depreciated 
replacement cost by Edwards & Co, a firm of independent chartered surveyors.  On implementation 
of FRS102, the college retained the book values as deemed cost but opted not to adopt a policy of 
revaluations in the future. 

Land and buildings, and equipment with net book values of £2,886k and £236k respectively have 
been financed by exchequer funds through the receipt of funding agency capital grants.  Should 
these assets be sold, the college may be required, under the terms of the Financial Memorandum 
with the ESFA to surrender the proceeds of sale. 

In 2018-19 the college extended the Social Science teaching accommodation.  Construction work on 
this project was complete by 31 July 2020, however there was a delay to the final account and 
retainers.  Therefore values are currently shown as under construction. 

 

13.  DEBTORS 

 
All amounts falling due within one year 

2020 
£’000 

2019 
£’000 

Other debtors 
ESFA funding due FSM for Summer period 
ESFA capital grant due Sport Hall heating CIF project 

48 
16 
26 

15 
- 
- 

Interest receivable 10 15 
Prepayments and accrued income 44 43    

 144 73    
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14. CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR 

 2020 
£’000 

2019 
£’000 

ESFA funds received in advance (note 21) - 49 
Retainers for major projects  22 - 
Trade creditors 118 99 
Other creditors and accruals      124 152 
Salix energy efficiency loans (note 16) 1 2 
Other taxation and social security 106 107 
Pensions and other payroll related creditors  
Provision for Voluntary Severance Settlements 
Holiday pay accrual 
Deferred income ESFA capital grants 
DFE Capital Loan (condition improvement fund) 

113 
- 

256 
132 

3 

90 
210 
286 
94 

- 
   

 875 1,089  
 

  

Teaching staff are paid an annual salary over 12 months which includes a payment in August for holidays 
related to the preceding year.  Therefore at the year-end an amount of holiday pay is due up to the start of 
the new teaching year which starts with GCSE results in mid-August.  Under FRS102 this gives rise to an 
“employee leave accrual”.  To avoid yearly fluctuations to this figure an approximation of one month’s pay 
has been used to calculate the accrual. 

 

15. CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE AFTER MORE THAN ONE YEAR 

 2020 
£’000 

2019 
£’000 

Salix energy efficiency loans  (note 16) 
DFE Capital Loan (Condition improvement fund) 
Deferred income ESFA capital Grants 

7 
28 

2,990 

- 
- 

3,025 
   

 3,025 3,025    

Salix energy efficiency loans have helped support the Sport Hall Heating system.  A Condition 
Improvement Fund (CIF) Grant also supported the same project and cash of £105,000 was 
received in the year.  The grant would be repayable to the ESFA were the assets to be sold. 

 

16. BORROWINGS 

Salix Energy efficiency loans shown in creditors are repayable as follows: 2020 
£’000 

2019 
£’000 

In one year or less 
Between one and two years 

1 
1 

2 
- 

Between two and five years 
After more than five years 

3 
3 

- 
-    

Total 8 2    

The energy efficiency loans are repayable half yearly.  They are interest free as long as repayments 
are made on time.  If the assets financed by the loans were sold then the loans would become 
repayable immediately.   As part of its bid for Condition Improvement Fund (CIF) grant in 2020 the 
college has received a further £8k Salix energy efficiency loan to fund the sport hall heating system 
replacement. 
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DFE Condition improvement grant loans shown in creditors are repayable 
as follows: 

2020 
£’000 

2019 
£’000 

In one year or less 
Between one and two years 

3 
3 

- 
- 

Between two and five years 
After more than five years 

9 
16 

- 
-    

Total 31 -    

 

As part of its bid for Condition Improvement Fund (CIF) grant in 2020 the college has drawn down a 
£31k treasury loan to support the VAT on capital works to the sport hall heating system.   

 

 

 

17. PENSION AND SIMILAR DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS  

The College's employees belong to two pension schemes, the Teachers' Pension Scheme England 
and Wales (TPS) for teaching and related staff; and the Local Government Pension Scheme for non-
teaching staff which is managed by the Greater Manchester Pension Fund (GMPF).  Both are multi-
employer pension schemes.  Both were treated as defined contribution schemes until 2017 when the 
Greater Manchester Area review caused the breakup of the Small College pool of the GMPF.   

Total Pension costs for the Year 2020 
£’000 

2019 
£’000 

TPS employer contributions paid  691 515 
 

  

LGPS employer contributions paid 
FRS 102 (28) charge (current and past service cost) 

235 
395 

223 
367    

LGPS Charge to the statement of comprehensive income and expenditure 630 590    

Total Pension Cost for the Year within staff costs (TPS and LGPS) 1,321 1,105    

 

The pension costs are assessed in accordance with the advice of independent qualified actuaries.  
The latest formal actuarial review of the TPS was held in 31 March 2016. The LGPS had an actuarial 
valuation in 31 March 2019.  There were no outstanding or prepaid contributions at either the 
beginning or the end of the year.  Contributions payable to the scheme at 31 July are shown within 
creditors. 

 

 

 

Teachers’ Pension Scheme (TPS) 

The Teachers’ Pension Scheme TPS is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme governed 
by the Teachers’ Pension Scheme Regulations 2014.  These regulations apply to teachers in schools 
colleges and other educational establishments.  Membership is automatic for teachers at eligible 
institutions.  Teachers are able to opt out of the TPS. 

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and members contribute on a ’pay as you go‘ basis – these 
contributions, along with those made by employers, are credited to the Exchequer under 
arrangements governed by the above Act. Retirement and other pension benefits are paid by public 
funds provided by Parliament. 

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102 (28.11), the TPS is a multi-employer pension plan. The 
College is unable to identify its share of the underlying assets and liabilities of the plan. 

Accordingly, the College has taken advantage of the exemption in FRS 102 and has accounted for 
its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined-contribution plan. The College has set out 
above the information available on the plan and the implications for the College in terms of the 
anticipated contribution rates. 
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The valuation of the TPS is carried out in line with regulations made under the Public Service Pension 
Act 2013. Valuations credit the teachers’ pension account with a real rate of return assuming funds 
are invested in notional investments that produce that real rate of return. 

The latest actuarial review of the TPS was carried out as at 31 March 2016. The valuation report was 
published by the Department for Education (the Department in April 2019).  The valuation reported 
total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for 
service to the effective date of £218 billion, and notional assets (estimated future contributions 
together with the notional investments held at the valuation date) of £198 billion giving a notional 
past service deficit of £22 billion. 

As a result of the valuation, new employer contribution rates were set at 23.68% of pensionable pay 
from September 2019 onwards (compared to 16.48% during 2018-19). DfE has agreed to pay a 
teacher pension employer contribution grant to cover the additional costs during the 2019-20 
academic year and up to April 2021. 

A full copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation can be found on the Teachers’ 
Pension Scheme website. 

The pension contributions paid to TPS in the year amounted to £927,000 of which Employer costs 
were £691,000 (2019:£812,000 of which employer cost £515,000) 

 

 

 

Local Government Pension Scheme : Greater Manchester Pension Fund (GMPF) 

The scheme available to non-teaching staff is the Greater Manchester Pension Fund (GMPF).  The 
GMPF is a funded career average defined benefit plan, the assets of the scheme for Winstanley 
College were previously held in a pool with other sixth form colleges for actuarial valuation purposes, 
however the Greater Manchester area review has led to a break up of this pooling arrangement.   

The total pension contributions made by the College to the Scheme for the year ended 31 July 2020 
were £317,000 of which employer’s regular contributions totalled £235,000 and employee’s 
contributions £82,000. (2019 £281,000 employer £205,000 ee £75,000) The agreed employer 
contribution rates are 19.1% for employers and range from 5.5% to 7.5% for employees depending 
upon salary.  The contributions paid by the college are set by the Fund Actuary at each triennial 
actuarial valuation – the most recent being 31 March 2019.  Future contribution rates are now set for 
the next three years. 

It is important to note that the Accounting Standard FRS102 requires the discount rate to be set with 
reference to yields on high quality bonds irrespective of the actual investment strategy of the fund.  
As such the figures included in the accounts are unlikely to reflect either the actual eventual cost of 
providing pension benefits or the likely level of contributions to fund the college’s obligations to the 
fund.  The overall balance sheet deficit can change significantly due to the relative changes in equity 
and bond markets at each reporting date. 

Accounts for the entire GMPF as at 31 March 2019 are available on their website as is the actuary 
report for the whole scheme at that time.  Prior to the covid pandemic the fund was considered to be 
102% funded based on the 31 March 2019 valuation. 
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Principal Actuarial Assumptions 

The following information is based upon the full actuarial valuation of the fund at 31 March 2019 by 
a qualified independent actuary Hymans Robertson LLP. 

 At 31 July 
2020 

At 31 July 
2019 

 

Rate of increase in salaries 2.9% 3.2%  

Future pensions increases (CPI) 2.1% 2.4%  

Discount rate for scheme liabilities 1.4% 2.1%  

Inflation assumption (CPI) 2.1% 2.4%  

An allowance is included for future retirements to elect to take 55% of the maximum tax free cash up 
to HMRC limits for service pre April 2008 and 60% of maximum tax-free cash for service post April 
2008. 

 

The current mortality assumptions are based upon Vita Curves with improvements in line with the 
CMI 2018 model assuming the current rate of improvements has peaked and will converge to a long 
term rate of 1.25% per anum.   Based upon these assumptions, as at the last formal valuation of the 
scheme on 31 March 2019, the average life expectations at age 65 are summarised below:  

 Male Female 

Current pensionners at age 65  20.5 years 23.1 years 

Future pensioners current age 45 22.0 years 25.0 years 

The college’s share of the assets in the plan at the balance sheet date and the expected rates of 
return were :  

    Estmated 
split of 
plan 
assets at 
31 July 
2020 

% 

Estmated 
split of 

plan 
assets at 

31 July 
2020 

£000 

Estmated 
split of 
plan 
assets at 
31 July 
2019 

% 

Estmated 
split of 

plan 
assets at 

31 July 
2019 

£000 

 

Equity instruments    67% 5,419 69% 5,697  

Debt instruments 
(bonds) 

   18% 1,456 14% 1,156  

Property    7% 566 8% 661  

Cash    8% 647 9% 743  

Total fair value of  plan 
assets 

    8,088  8,257  

Actual return on plan 
assets 

    (326)  446  

The Long term rate of return on plan assets is the same as the discount rate under FRS 102 
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The amount included in the balance sheet in respect of the defined benefit pension plan is as 
follows 

 At 31 July 
2020 

£000 

At 31 July 
2019 

£000 

 

Fair value of plan assets 8,088 8,257  

Present value of plan liabilities (12,079) (10,596)  

Net pensions liability (note 18) (3,991) (2,339)  

 

 

Amounts recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in respect of the plan are as 
follows : 

 At 31 July 
2020 

£000 

At 31 July 
2019 

£000 

Amounts included within staff costs   

Current service cost (note 7) 

Past Service costs 

(627) 

- 

(479) 

(111) 

Amounts included in investment income   

Net interest income on plan assets  (note 6) 175 216 

Amounts shown in interest costs    

Interest cost on defined benefit obligation (note 10) (229) (253) 

Actuarial Gain (loss) in respect of the LGPS   

Re-measurement 

Changes in financial assumptions for the defined pension fund 

 

(702) 

 

(1,031) 

Return on assets excluding amounts included as interest (501) 

 

230 

   

Amounts shown in cashflows are shown in the statement of cash 
flows where non-cash items are also analysed. 

  

 

Movement in net defined benefit liability/ asset during the year 

 2020 
£’000 

2019 
£’000 

Net defined benefit asset/ (liability) in scheme at 1 August 
Movement in year: 

(2,339) (1,134) 

Current service cost 
Net interest cost 
Employer contributions 
Actuarial gain or loss 

(627) 
(54) 
232 

(1,203) 
 

(590) 
(37) 
223 

(801) 

   

Defined benefit obligations at the end of the period (note18) (3,991) (2,339)    
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Asset and Liability Reconciliation     

Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligations 2020 
£’000 

2019 
£’000 

Defined benefit obligations at the start of the period 10,596 8,767 
Current service cost 
Past Service cost 
Interest cost 
Contributions by scheme participants 
Benefits paid 
Changes in demographic assumptions 
Changes in  financial assumptions 
Other experience 

627 
- 

229 
82 

(157) 
278 

1,013 
(589) 

479 
111 
253 
75 

(120) 
(576) 
1,607 

-    

Defined benefit obligations at the end of the period 12,079 10,596    

 

Changes in the fair value of plan assets 2020 
£’000 

2019 
£’000 

Fair value of plan assets at the start of the period 8,257 7,633 
Interest on plan assets 
Contributions by scheme participants 
Employer contributions 
Benefits paid 
Return on plan assets 

175 
82 

232 
(157) 
(501) 

216 
75 

223 
(120) 

230    

Fair value of plan assets at the end of the period 8,088 8,257    

Past service cost includes an allowance of £85,000 (2019 £85,000) to make appropriate allowance 
for the “McCloud” judgement of 0.81% of total liabilities. 

 

18. PROVISIONS 

 2020 
£’000 

2019 
£’000 

   
Defined benefit obligations at 1 August 2,339 1,134 
Expenditure in the period (current service cost/ interest cost/ change in 

financial assumptions) 
Additions in the period (employer contributions/ investment income/  
Increase in pension asset values) 

2,141 
 

(489) 

1,874 
 

(669) 

   

Defined benefit obligations at 31 July  3,991 2,339    

Defined benefit obligations relate to the liabilities under the College’s membership of the Local 
Government Pension Scheme.   Further details are given in Note 17. 

 

19. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 

 2020 
£’000 

2019 
£’000 

   
Commitments contracted for at 31 July  206 103    

Authorised but not contracted for at 31 July  54 191    
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20. FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS 

At 31 July 2020 the college had minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases 
as follows: 

Other 2020 
£’000 

2019 
£’000 

   
Expiring within one year 18 18 
Expiring between two and five years inclusive 15 16    

 33 34    

Photocopier contracts were renewed in June 2017 and July 2020 using contracts procured through 
Crescent Purchasing Consortium.  A new franking machine was leased in December 2017 

 

 

21. AMOUNTS DISBURSED AS AGENT – BURSARY FUND AND FREE MEALS 

 Year ended 
31 July 

2020 
£’000s 

Year ended 
31 July 

2019 
£’000s 

 

Bursary Fund    
Funding Agency income Bursary 
ESFA vulnerable bursary payment 
Funding Agency Free Meals funding 
ESFA additional summer payment 
Amount unspent in prior year 

101 
6 

80 
16 
49 

111 
9 

93 
- 
- 

 

 
                                       

Total Income 252 213  
Disbursed to Students:- 
Transport 
Student bursary payments 
Free Meals costs 
Student equipment and assessment costs 

 
(48) 
(55) 

(151) 
(1) 

 
(33) 
(66) 
(53) 
(5) 

 

 
                                       

Total Disbursed (255) (157)  
Administration Costs  
Balance written off to college operating expenses 

(9) 
12 

(10) 
 

 

                                       
Balance unspent at 31 July  - 46                                        

 

 The government phased out the Education Maintenance Allowance (EMA) during 2012 as well as 
the former discretionary learner support fund.  Both funds were replaced by a bursary fund where a 
certain level of grant is given to the college and the college makes bursary payments to students as 
it feels best supports their education.   

 Students in certain defined categories qualify for a £1,300 vulnerable student bursary, thereafter 
colleges are free to set their own levels of bursary award and qualifying income thresholds within the 
allocation they receive.  In the year to 31 July 2020, 221 students qualified for discretionary bursaries 
(2019 260) a further 6 qualified for vulnerable bursary. 

 For 2017-18 the college had reduced the cost of a student bus pass therefore it was possible to pay 
more students either £10 per week or £360 bus cost and the household income threshold used for 
bursary was increased to £25,000 from £16,190.  This practice continued in 2019-20.    

The income threshold for FSM is set by the government and has not been increased for inflation for 
many years so that over time fewer students will qualify as FSM as household incomes exceed the 
figure of £16,190 which has not been indexed to inflation or the rise in the national minimum wage.  
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS 

As the minimum wage rises and Universal credit rolls out FSM rules are changing to be a threshold 
of UC plus net earned income of <£7,400.  This may change the number of students who are eligible 
to apply over time.  In the year to 31 July 2020 194 students were assessed to be eligible for Free 
College Meals compared to 151 in 2019.  In September 2019 the government allowed Local 
Authorities to share data with colleges for the first time indicating which students had previously 
qualified for FSM while at high school.  Therefore the college offered FSM to these students as well 
as those who had applied and qualified based upon their income in September 2019.  This lead to a 
greater number of qualifying students and so the funding allocated to the college was increased 
during the year.    

The FSM allocation is supposed to give a fixed £2.41 per student per day on the assumption that 
meals are only eaten four days per week.   Again this sum has fallen in real terms as food prices rise 
with inflation over time – this then leads students not to spend their allocation as they feel it is 
insufficient to buy a meal.  The college has increased the amount per day by moving funding from 
the bursary fund to top up the meal allocation to £3 per day.  During Lockdown the college was asked 
to continue to pay FSM during the Easter Holidays and this continued into the summer period with 
ESFA contributing an extra £16,000 of funding to support the additional expenditure. 

The college does not believe that it is due to repay any underspend any Bursary or FSM funding at 
31 July 2020 as the funding received can be carried over and used to make payments at the 
beginning of the next college year to qualifying students.   The college acts only as paying agent.  
The income and related disbursements are therefore excluded from the Income and Expenditure 
Account. 

The college has contributed to consultation on the changes to bursary fund in 2020-21 and has 
received information from the ESFA about how funding will change to include a fund for transport 
according to postcode and rurality.  The full roll out of the new funding regime is being phased in 
over 4 years.  

The covid pandemic has caused changes to household incomes.  The college continued to reach 
out to students during lockdown and afterwards and 7 students qualified for FSM and/or bursary in 
the period from March to the end of summer 2020.       
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Reporting Accountant’s Assurance Report on Regularity 

To the Corporation of Winstanley College and Secretary of State for Education Acting Through the 
Department for Education (“the Department”)  

 

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter and further to the requirements of the funding 
agreements with the Education and Skills Funding Agency we have carried out an engagement to obtain 
limited assurance about whether anything has come to our attention that would suggest that in all material 
respects the expenditure disbursed and income received by Winstanley College during the period 1 August 
2019 to 31 July 2020 have not been applied to the purposes identified by Parliament and the financial 
transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them. 

 

The framework that has been applied is set out in the Post 16 Audit Code of Practice issued by the 
Department. In line with this framework, our work has specifically not considered income received from the 
main funding grants generated through the Individualised Learner Record (ILR) returns, for which the 
Department has other assurance arrangements in place. 

 

This report is made solely to the Corporation of Winstanley College and the Department in accordance with 
our engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Corporation of 
Winstanley College and the Department those matters we are required to state in a report and for no other 
purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other 
than the Corporation of Winstanley College and the Department for our work, for this report, or for the 
conclusion we have formed. 

 

Respective responsibilities of Winstanley College and the Reporting Accountant 

 

The Corporation of Winstanley College is responsible, under the requirements of the Further and Higher 
Education Act 1992, subsequent legislation and related regulations and guidance, for ensuring that 
expenditure disbursed and income received is applied for the purposes intended by Parliament and the 
financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them. 

 

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession’s ethical 
guidance and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the 
requirements of the Post 16 Audit Code of Practice. We report to you whether anything has come to our 
attention in carrying out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and 
income received during the period 1 August 2019 to 31 July 2020 have not been applied to purposes 
intended by Parliament or that the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern 
them. 

 

Approach 

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Post 16 Audit Code of Practice issued by the 
Department. We performed a limited assurance engagement as defined in that framework. 

 

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information 
and explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative 
conclusion on regularity. 

 

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and 
consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters 
that might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive 
opinion. 
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Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity of the 
College’s income and expenditure. 

 

The work undertaken to draw our conclusions includes: 

• review of evidence supporting the College’s Regularity Self-Assessment; and 

• review of the College’s expenditure during the year. 

 

Conclusion 
 
In the course of our work nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in all material respects 
the expenditure disbursed and income received during the period 1 August 2019 to 31 July 2020 has not 
been applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the 
authorities which govern them. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Murray Smith LLP 
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors 
Darland House 
44 Winnington Hill 
Northwich 
Cheshire  
CW8 1AU 
 
14 December 2020           
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Financial Stats 27 Years 1994-2020

Year 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Student numbers at 1 November 1063 1147 1272 1302 1342 1370 1391 1453 1528 1634 1653 1715 1755 1784 1812 1872 1860 1885 1906 1930 1959 2012 2059 2020 1946 1908 1835

Teaching Staff FTE 77 84 80 81 69 66 73 78 81 82 83 89 93 93 97 98 92 95 88 87 88 88 89 82 78 72 70

Support Staff FTE 22 35 42 46 45 42 42 49 52 53 53 54 68 67 63 71 72 74 65 68 65 67 68 70 72 75 71

Total Staff FTE 99 119 122 127 114 108 115 127 133 135 136 143 161 160 160 169 164 169 153 155 153 155 157 152 150 147 141

£000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's

Income 3140 3402 3769 3980 3738 3869 4185 5353 6018 6917 7515 7868 8323 8427 9217 8959 9381 9367 9471 9186 9058 9247 9267 9013 8651 8216 8236

Staff costs excluding FRS102 2225 2468 2667 2897 2609 2589 2838 3248 3716 4194 4535 4834 5050 5317 5576 5808 5863 6010 5484 5545 5811 5990 6190 6121 6014 6140 5971

Staff cost % 71% 73% 71% 73% 70% 67% 68% 61% 62% 61% 60% 61% 61% 63% 60% 65% 62% 64% 58% 60% 64% 65% 67% 68% 68% 71% 71%

Non Pay 583 699 1024 797 610 675 855 1020 1224 1178 1532 1704 1456 1466 2224 2188 1774 1578 1628 1937 1805 1884 1601 1598 1746 1678 1495

Non Pay% 19% 21% 27% 20% 16% 17% 20% 19% 20% 17% 20% 22% 17% 17% 24% 24% 19% 17% 17% 21% 20% 20% 17% 18% 22% 22% 18%

Depreciation 147 190 241 276 290 282 289 382 509 485 531 548 608 619 587 551 560 627 1109 576 742 859 856 733 799 741 794

Surplus/ Deficit  Pre FRS102 185 45 -163 -3 229 323 203 703 569 1060 917 782 1209 1025 830 412 1184 1152 1250 1128 700 514 620 561 92 -343 -24

Surplus/ Deficit % 6% 1% -4% 0% 6% 8% 5% 13% 9% 15% 12% 10% 15% 12% 9% 5% 13% 12% 13% 12% 8% 6% 7% 6% 1% -2% 0%

EBITDA Education Specific/ Performance ratio 332 235 78 273 519 605 492 1085 1078 1545 1448 1330 1817 1644 1417 963 1744 1685 2216 1659 1189 1114 1177 1158 772 263 599

EBITDA % /Performance ratio % 11% 7% 2% 7% 14% 16% 12% 20% 18% 22% 19% 17% 22% 20% 15% 11% 19% 18% 24% 18% 14% 13% 13% 13% 9% 3% 7%

Cashflow from operations 386 312 -129 97 409 405 526 1482 646 1301 1622 1130 1336 1406 927 733 1696 1346 2400 1777 920 757 1344 1153 638 521 295

Spend on Fixed Assets & Planned maintenance 545 646 562 257 31 370 637 1823 1886 1879 1507 1888 672 717 254 344 716 544 4452 3541 3019 1595 619 1165 963 1469 482

Capital Grants received 118 107 233 115 87 79 163 638 468 736 352 367 125 69 0 0 0 540 943 288 0 80 0 0 0 127 105

Cash balance at year end 291 328 208 286 455 703 915 1344 763 1256 1936 1783 2698 3672 4584 5174 6697 8278 7684 6730 4948 4740 5602 5748 5590 4943 5032

Cash days 34 35 20 26 44 66 80 92 46 66 94 83 118 159 182 213 261 326 301 269 199 187 221 233 232 215 246

Current ratio 1.45 1.48 1.03 1.07 1.82 3.69 2.85 1.52 1.62 2.27 2.08 1.91 4.08 5.75 7.37 9.11 8.55 8.54 8.27 6.02 6.70 9.15 5.81 5.87 6.70 4.61 5.92

Crude EBITDA % 11% 7% 2% 7% 14% 16% 12% 20% 18% 22% 19% 17% 22% 20% 15% 11% 19% 19% 25% 19% 16% 15% 16% 14% 10% 7% 7%

Surplus % 6% 1% -4% 0% 6% 8% 5% 13% 9% 15% 12% 10% 15% 12% 9% 5% 13% 12% 13% 12% 8% 6% 7% 6% 1% -2% 0%

Note Income, Surplus Staff costs and Non pay are shown excluding FRS102 pension figures for consistency with period 1994-2016
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